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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Perishable Products Export Control Board is a statutory organisation, established in
June 1926. The PPECB conducts its business in terms of the Perishable Products Export
Control Act of 1983 (PPECB Act).

PPECB also operates as an assignee for the Department of Agriculture under the
requirements of the Agricultural Products Standards Act (No. 119 of 1990).

This Annual Report presents PPECB’s operating and financial performance for the year
1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 and has been prepared in compliance with the
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999 (as amended).



Our Services

Product & Equipment Certification

Private Standard Certification

Cold Chain Management

Statistical Information

Food Safety Auditing

Advisory Services

Training
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CHAIRPERSON

ELAINE ALEXANDER

Review by the
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There will be many challenges in the year ahead

but I am confident that we have the best team in

place to help our perishable produce industry

achieve global competitiveness.

THE BOARD UNDERTOOK A LONG OVERDUE LOOK AT
the current portfolio of PPECB services as they
were originally set out under the relevant pieces
of legislation, which govern our mandate. It was
interesting for us to take time to consider how we
had slowly developed from our origins to where we
are today and to what is now required of a globally
competitive regulator.

Our CEO and the executive team spent some of this
year benchmarking PPECB services and role against
similar organisations in various parts of the world and
have brought back valuable insights in how PPECB
can further develop to ensure that we meet our
strategic objective of supporting and growing the
export competitiveness of South African perishable
produce.

There has also been extensive interaction with all our
stakeholders to make sure that PPECB continues
to be relevant and to add value to the perishable
produce industry. We introduced the Harmonisation
Programme to bring certainty to the application and
implementation of our inspection services, which
I believe will further support the credibility of the
export certificate.

I am pleased to be able to say that we have made
great str ides towards implementing the PPECB
Equity Plan and creating a demographical ly
representative company.

I believe that we will continue to review our strategy
within the framework of being a facilitator, and sup-
port not only the Department of Agriculture but also
the industries which we service under both the Agri-
cultural Produce Standards Act and the PPECB Act.

This past year has brought many changes to the
world around us and we have witnessed events that

I am sure many of us believed could not possibly
happen. The collapse of the international markets
and its consequences have raised many questions
for which relevant answers must be found if we, both
as individuals and as a company, are to feel secure
in a global trading environment.

There will be many challenges in the year ahead but
I am confident that we have the best team in place
to help our perishable produce industry achieve
global competitiveness.

I want to thank the members of the PPECB Board for
their unfailing support over the past year, the Chief
Executive Officer and his executive team for all
their hard work and tireless efforts to adjust to the
ongoing targets, and all the PPECB employees who
again have gone the extra mile to make sure that
every consignment made it on time to the market.

ANOTHER YEAR HAS PASSED AND FOR PPECB MUCH OF IT WAS BUSINESS AS USUAL.

WE WERE FORTUNATE THAT OUR NEW CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER WAS VERY FAMILIAR

WITH OUR OPERATIONS BY THE BEGINNING OF THE NEW FINANCIAL YEAR AND WELL

IN COMMAND OF HIS TEAM. THIS ENABLED THE BOARD TO LOOK AT ENSURING THAT

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED TO BE RELEVANT AND THAT WE AS A COMPANY WERE

DELIVERING ON OUR OBJECTIVES AS PRESENTED TO ALL OUR STAKEHOLDERS.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

LUVUYO MABOMBO

Report by the
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IN PURSUIT OF EXCELLENCE IN A COMPETITIVE WORLD.

PPECB’S ENORMOUS AND CRUCIAL TASK IS TO IMPLEMENT A MANDATE OF CONTROL

OVER PERISHABLE PRODUCTS INTENDED FOR EXPORT. WITHOUT DECADES OF

COMPETENT EXPERIENCE SUPPORTED BY ROBUST INSTITUTIONAL SYSTEMS

THIS TASK WOULD HAVE BEEN IMPOSSIBLE TO ACCOMPLISH.

PPECB PLAYS A SIGNIFICANT ROLE IN THE COUNTRY’S
food control system for regulated agricultural products
destined for export. We continue fulfilling this responsi-
bility in a world where competition over shelf space in
supermarkets is becoming more and more robust,
guided by our vision of being a partner in the global
competitiveness of South African perishable products.

Strategic Projects

In a world where success is measured by perform-
ance from one production season to the next, how
does PPECB effectively operate in the present while
pursuing a strategic direction into the next two
decades and beyond? This is the question that the
Strategic Plan 2008 -13, approved by the PPECB Board
in 2008, attempted to answer. This report provides a
comprehensive account of our business performance
against the strategic objectives identified in the plan.
These objectives have been translated into five
flagship projects. These are:

1. In partnership with the government, investigate
alternative sampling methodologies;

2. Implement inspections Harmonisat ion Pro-
gramme;

3. Consolidate and fast-track the Electronic Data
Interchange project;

4. Initiate a PPECB Training Academy; and

5. Assist the government in benchmarking the South
African food safety system against globally
recognised good agricultural practice;

As with any strategic plans, success of the above-
mentioned projects has not always been even but
work is already underway to capitalise on the gains
made during the review period.

Consolidating the Gains of a
Transforming Organisation

In a knowledge institution, which is in the process of
transformation, people are the most important re-
source the business has and harnessing that resource
is critical. We are proud to report that during the
period under review our workforce has continued to
embrace the journey towards building an organisa-
tion that reflects the South African demographic. This
annual report charts the progress made in employ-
ment equity transformation, as well transformation
in our ways of doing business. All of these are impera-
tive for the future sustainability of our business.

As a sign of commitment to this ethos we have intro-
duced programmes intended to recognise the best
employees in the company. We also continuously
review the conditions under which our employees
operate. The company will continue implementing
these programmes as a commitment to the
consolidation of the gains in transforming PPECB.

Operating Results

PPECB is reporting again a set of positive results, both
financially and in business performance. Based on
performance targets that we had set for ourselves,
we have surpassed our own expectations. Details
of the financial results equally reflect a positive out-
come for an organisation facing the challenges of
international trading trends. We will ensure that we
use our accumulated reserves to invest in sustaining
our operations well into the future. PPECB manage-
ment dedicates itself to building a world class
organisation, worthy of the South African brand it
represents around the world. With professionalism,
our integrity will stand the test of time.
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Annual Performance Report

STRATEGIC PLAN 2008-2013

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE
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IN A WORLD WHERE SUCCESS IS MEASURED BY PERFORMANCE

FROM ONE PRODUCTION SEASON TO THE NEXT, HOW DOES PPECB

EFFECTIVELY OPERATE IN THE PRESENT WHILE PURSUING A STRATEGIC

DIRECTION INTO THE NEXT TWO DECADES AND BEYOND? THIS IS THE

QUESTION THAT THE STRATEGIC

PLAN 2008 -13, APPROVED

BY THE PPECB BOARD

IN 2008, ATTEMPTED

TO ANSWER.

CEO LUVUYO MABOMBO



STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

KEY
PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

2008/09 FINANCIAL YEAR

YEAR 1: 2008/2009
PERFORMANCE PROGRESS EMERGING

ISSUES/
CHALLENGES

TARGET ACTION PLAN/
ACTIVITIES

STRATEGIC PLAN 2008 - 2013
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1. ENHANCE THE
CREDIBILITY OF
SOUTH AFRICAN
EXPORT CERTIFI-
CATE

Align delivery
capability with
globally
recognised
methodologies

Investigate with
DoA alternative
sampling plans,
system design to
build up a risk
databank

Data gathering
for risk profiling;

Investigate and
internationally
benchmark
alternative
sampling plans.

PPECB has been developing
awareness with the Department of
Agriculture (DoA) of the need to
investigate alternative methodologies
to sampling as a response to volume
growth of exports coming from South
Africa. This initiative has been agreed
on and received endorsement from
DoA and a joint steering committee is
in existence.
International benchmarking was
conducted during 2008, including
evaluation of existing risk profiles. As
part of the benchmarking process,
major importing authorities were
engaged in sampling plans and
interpretation of standards employed
by various importing inspectorates.

A system of regular recording and
reporting of phytosanitary rejections
to DoA is underway, coupled with
internal meetings discussing possible
approaches to risk profiling. All data
was gathered for the risk profile. It is
currently in the process of being
developed into a database for
presentation at the end of this
quarter.

Impending
deregulation of
marketing
standards in the
EU

Additional
electronic
capturing of all
risk factors (CBS,
FCM, fruit fly and
decay.) has
become an
important
requirement at
the operational
level.

Increased
effectiveness of
our current
statutory
responsibilities

Assist in designing
the National
Food Safety
Control Plan

Collaborate with
DoA with respect
to National
Control Plan

PPECB has collaborated with DoA in
preparing a draft policy directive that
deals with an integrated framework
for effective control of quality, food
safety, phytosanitary and cold chain
for export, local and import of plant
and plant products.

PPECB has presented a comprehen-
sive commentary on the draft Plant
Health Policy, as well as inputs to the
policy on food safety in South Africa.
We also participated in the Food &
Veterinary Office (FVO) action plan
development and a food safety risk
assessment. Contribution was made in
the redrafting of food safety standards
and requirements, including updating
and publishing standard operating
procedures (SOPs) for export certifica-
tion and FBO database.
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Enhance
requirements to
support the
credibility of the
export certificate

Continuous
engagement
with DoA on the
accuracy of the
FBO database

A SOP on management, allocation,
update and access to the Food
Business Operator (FBO) database
was drafted. In 2008, PPECB initiated
and finalised a FBO information
update on current FBO database
information used at PPECB inspection
points. This was supported by a
service level agreement signed
between the two organisations, as
well as a joint steering committee
overseeing a clear project plan.

Need for
standardisation of
codes for critical
information (e.g.
product type,
etc.)

Assist DoA in the
development of
Mycotoxin risk
strategy

The Mycotoxin SOP for sampling and
testing of groundnuts, oilseeds and
grains was completed and authorised
by the DoA executive officer. Risk
strategy was developed and standard
operating procedures for Mycotoxins
are in place.

Assist DoA in the
Maximum
Residue Limit
(MRL) risk profiling
and streamlining
of processes

PPECB assisted DoA in drawing up
MRL lists for apples, pears, citrus fruit,
mangoes and avocados. PPECB has
agreed to assist DoA in bolstering
capacity in the area of MRL updates.
PPECB and DoA held a workshop to
discuss KPMs as part of the MRL SOP
process. Engagement continued with
DoA to evaluate KPIs in SOP for MRL.

A need was
identified for a
careful review of
the impact that
this work has on
the standards
and requirements
of Act 36.
Capacity for MRL
administration
remains critical.

Engage DoA on
electronic
verification of
information on
addendums and
unique pallet IDs

Ongoing engagement was initiated
with DoA to legislate the use of
standardised, unique and scanable
pallet IDs (e.g. in the citrus industry,
98% of pallets are furnished with
pallet IDs). The existing project on
export certification has been split into
two, i.e. FBO database and elec-
tronic data interchange (UPI and
standardisation of codes included),
to facilitate delivery on both
imperatives. A new export certifica-
tion SOP was developed containing
a standardised addendum format,
including an audit procedure. An
analysis on the impact on PPECB
operations capacity as a result of
electronic verification was con-
ducted and completed. The 2009
citrus season has been identified for
some piloting.

Border Control
project spear-
headed by SARS/
Customs might
have an impact
on final technol-
ogy choices.

1. ENHANCE THE
CREDIBILITY OF
SOUTH AFRICAN
EXPORT CERTIFI-
CATE
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Address PPECB
internal export
certification gaps

An active project team was
established to advise on requisite
business decisions to be taken on a
continuous basis. This is an ongoing
activity.

Reviewed Policy
on food safety
and product
quality

Conclude inputs
to the review of
regulations
governing cold
chain activities.

Establish a
project team

A functional project team was
established. The project team
concluded draft regulations (incl.
standards and requirements per
regulation) for equipment certifica-
tion, product handling/loading and
temperature management and
loading. These draft regulations were
submitted to DoA for consideration &
gazetting.

The final structure
of the regulations
and standards
and requirements
will be depend-
ent on the
content and
whether it forms
part of the APS
Act.

Evaluate an audit
approach within
the cold chain
environment

Evaluation of
Cool Chain
Quality Indicator
(CCQI) as a
methodology to
ensure compli-
ance to cold
chain require-
ments.

PPECB, in collaboration with the Cool
Chain Association (CCA), established
a project evaluating the effective-
ness of the CCQI standard as a tool in
temperature management. The
PPECB is evaluating the potential an
audit approach would have on
PPECB’s operations as a measure-
ment tool for the effective manage-
ment of cold chain functions.

Determine gaps
between current
cold chain
inspection
methodology
and CCQI

Gaps have been identified between
the current practice and an audit
approach but have not been
incorporaed into the draft regulations.

Evaluation of
CCQI principles
in local and
overseas leg

First pilot trial completed and a final
report completed. More trials
planned to confirm proof of concept.

Internal capacity
building for
knowledge and
skills transfer

Establish an in-
service training
programme to
limit risk exposure

Define training
roles and assign
responsibility to
trainers

Successful training interventions
hosted centrally for new entrants and
AETP students. Intervention intended
to test the model for expedited skills
transfer and risk profiling of candi-
dates. Risk is based on the compe-
tency skills assessment that is
continuous throughout the interven-
tion and informs the national
resource plan and relief duty roster.
Elective training conducted, based
on the principle of accelerated skills
transfer of the harmonisation model
in future.

1. ENHANCE THE
CREDIBILITY OF
SOUTH AFRICAN
EXPORT CERTIFI-
CATE
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Refined roles between specialist
functions and line supervision based
on components of training imple-
mented and reviewed. A total of 18
students successfully assimilated into
the national resource plan based on
performance during training.

Training as input to the harmonisation
programme discussed, standardised
and documented for inspection and
cold chain.

Functional/technical training for
statutory operations firmly imbedded
in the approved harmonisation
programme.

Harmonisation
programme to
ensure consistent
application of
standards

Review, bench
mark and map a
harmonisation
programme

Desk-top study of
international
programmes

Concurrent benchmarking was
undertaken as part of a strategy
formulation process with international
counterparts. In-depth discussions
were held with HMI UK, KCB Nether-
lands and BLE Germany. A harmoni-
sation strategy was developed and
approved by the board.

Limited docu-
mented pro-
grammes owned
by international
inspectorates
that could serve
as reference.

Analyse and
support consist-
ent and high
quality internal
functional
training

Introduction and piloting of product
specialists to support the regional
harmonisation efforts was completed.
Five specialist roles have been
identified for production regions with
defined working programmes and
deliverables. Reports on the monitor-
ing of consistent application of
standards are encouraging. Three
specialists have been deployed on a
temporary basis to assist during the
grape season.

Develop
additional
measurement
tools for applica-
tion

Additional check lists and evaluation
sheets drafted, refined and imple-
mented. First “koffer toets” was
reintroduced, the results analysed
and then internalised.

Port activity
auditing as a
measurement
tool appears to
be challenging
due to cost,
safety and
logistical factors.

Establish,
document and
implement
process flow

Principles of harmonisation estab-
lished and communicated to all
stakeholders through a workshop. All
necessary documentation and
implementation processes com-
pleted.

1. ENHANCE THE
CREDIBILITY OF
SOUTH AFRICAN
EXPORT CERTIFI-
CATE
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Establish commu-
nication and
reporting lines.

Reviewed and confirmed communi-
cation matrix as part of reviewing the
statutory operations business model.

Harmonisation of
product quality
standards in
Africa

Develop a
conceptual
framework for a
workshop for
harmonisation of
standards for
SADC countries

Conceptualisation of the proposed
workshop completed, correspond-
ence sent to DoA and input, full
cooperation and response awaited.

Identify and build
relationships with
other African
inspectorates and
relevant destina-
tion countries.

PPECB participated in a SADC
Stakeholders’ Workshop on Private,
Voluntary Agri-food Standards.
Existing inspectorates identified within
the SADC region.

2. SUPPORT THE
EXPORT COMPETI-
TIVENESS OF
SOUTH AFRICA’S
PERISHABLE
PRODUCTS
INDUSTRIES

Increase
investment in R&D
initiatives within
cold chain

Improve
container airflow

Commercialise
results of
improved airflow
in back-to-back
trials in all fruit
kinds

Project plan was completed for
further continuation of the Horizontal
Airflow Project. Extended lease of
new containers identified as key to
the next phase of the project.
Negotiations completed with
container leasing company.
Engineering company that will
modify containers to horizontal
airflow to be identified.

Two successful trials were conducted
in the Tzaneen Region, simulating the
proposed sterilisation protocol for
shipping avocados to the USA.

Exit strategy to
research projects
could be elusive
given the nature
of R&D.

Improve
packaging
design

Make available
packaging
redesign to
packaging
companies

Trials were conducted with one of the
packaging companies on new
“Super Vent” citrus carton to test the
improvement compared to the
existing telescopic carton. Results
illustrated the benefits of using super
vent cartons.

Improve
standards for
pallets

Draft standard
specifications for
fruit pallet

International specifications and
drawings were collected to add to
the database of local information. A
draft document that incorporates
new information was circulated to
the citrus industry by the packaging
workgroup of the Citrus Cold Chain
Forum.

A standard for the pallet ID was
adopted by the EDI Project steering
committee based on the GS1 SSCC
specification.

Analysis done by
the project team
confirmed that
about 80% of
industry currently
uses the GS1
Pallet ID.

1. ENHANCE THE
CREDIBILITY OF
SOUTH AFRICAN
EXPORT CERTIFI-
CATE



STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

KEY
PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

2008/09 FINANCIAL YEAR

YEAR 1: 2008/2009
PERFORMANCE PROGRESS EMERGING

ISSUES/
CHALLENGES

TARGET ACTION PLAN/
ACTIVITIES

STRATEGIC PLAN 2008 - 2013

PP ECB -  ANNUAL REPORT 2008  -2009 17

Grow develop-
ment initiatives of
PPECB

Consolidate an
interim plan for
SA PIP II

Interact with DoA
and the EU for the
second phase of
the programme

The SA Pesticide Initiative Programme
(SA PIP) was concluded. The
outcomes of the technical audit
were that all programme objectives
of SA PIP have been achieved as
outlined in the financial agreement
between the EU and the South
African government. Engagement
with the EU indicated that the
envisaged SA PIP II was unlikely to
materialise due to the criteria of the
EU/SA country strategy.

Roll out interim
plan and appoint
a manager

Agreement reached with DoA that
the bridging finance for the closing
down period would be regarded as a
grant to give effect to development
initiatives. The focus areas for the
interim plan will be:

· Supporting of emerging farming
projects that have the ability to
export;

· Training initiatives to support
emerging farmers in the correct
handling of pesticides and food
safety requirements for the export
market; and

· Maintaining of the MRL database in
ensuring that SA complies with
requirements of our trading
partners.

Various training initiatives conducted
in Venda with emerging farmers and
extension officers. Partnership
agreement signed with the National
Agricultural Marketing Council with
the first project awarded to PPECB to
train emerging farmers in
Mpumalanga. Training of personnel
of Vygeboom pack house on quality
standards for grapes concluded.

Increase
partnerships
initiatives with
donor develop-
ment institutions

Establish donor
development
institutions
database

Donor development institutions
database developed.

Conduct at least
two donor
development
funded projects in
the SADC Region

Project for training of lead auditors in
Tanzania for GlobalGap certification
conducted with funding from the
Commark Trust.

2. SUPPORT THE
EXPORT COMPETI-
TIVENESS OF
SOUTH AFRICA’S
PERISHABLE
PRODUCTS
INDUSTRIES
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PPECB, in collaboration with DoA in
Limpopo, embarked on a project to
assist the ten most promising
emerging farmers of the Vhembe
Farmers Association to become part
of the export value chain. Training
interventions with extension officers of
the department was part of the
process in order to build sustainable
capacity in the province.

External Capacity
building, for
knowledge and
skills transfer

Establish an
Academy of
Excellence for
product quality
and food safety
evaluation
standards

2. SUPPORT THE
EXPORT COMPETI-
TIVENESS OF
SOUTH AFRICA’S
PERISHABLE
PRODUCTS
INDUSTRIES

Develop a
conceptual
framework
model for the
Academy of
Excellence

Concept, framework model, and a
business plan was developed and
approved for the PPECB Training
Academy.

Establish
competency
base for trainers

Activity still in progress

Develop
accredited
courses in areas
of focus

Activity still in progress

Establish
partnerships with
relevant
institutions

PPECB Training Academy model
shared with DoA.

Increase services
in support of the
competitiveness
of the SA
perishable
industries

Increase the
scope of
accreditations to
enter other
markets

Achieve and
maintain
accreditations for
new scope

PPECB has been accepted as a
certification body (CB) for LEAF and
360 quality standard. In 2009 5 LEAF
audits were confirmed. Successfully
audited by SANAS for the new
ISO17021 standard, as well as ISO with
65 accreditations. Successful
laboratory ISO 17025 external audit
by SANAS. PPECB was the first South
African CB to achieve ISO 17021
accreditation. Established an SA
training work group for GlobalGAP.

Maintain
customer loyalty

Thirty two new clients have been
assisted with either HACCP/BRC/
GlobalGAP/TNC audits. Measured
customer feedback shows that in
general clients are happy with the
service. Customer survey indicated
100% of customers evaluated
laboratory service as either excellent
or good.

Anti-competitive
behavior by some
schemes a matter
of concern.
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Build capacity
and competency
of skilled
personnel

2. SUPPORT THE
EXPORT COMPETI-
TIVENESS OF
SOUTH AFRICA’S
PERISHABLE
PRODUCTS
INDUSTRIES

Three auditors completed the BRC 5
conversion and LEAF courses.
Laboratory monthly ISO 17025 internal
audits successfully completed. Two
new laboratory food fats analytical
methods training completed for three
senior analysts. Certifications
manager attended the GlobalGAP
summit and scheme managers’
workshop.

Benchmark SA
GAP against
international
recognised good
practices on GAP

Benchmarking of
SA GAP against
international
good practice
on GAP

Engage DoA on
the policy and
the motivation for
benchmarking of
SA GAP interna-
tionally

Scoping document for a benchmark
of SA GAP internationally approved
by EXCO and submitted to the policy
authority (DoA) for purposes of
engagement.

Formalise PPECB’s
internal proc-
esses through ISO
accreditation as
South Africa’s
certified
inspection body

Evaluate Org.
capacity to be
ISO accredited
inspections
institution in order
to instill world-
wide confidence
in South African
perishable
products

Development of
a project plan
with implementa-
tion costs for ISO
17020

Project plan developed and approv-
ed by EXCO. Training of key personnel
on ISO 17020 started in and was on-
going through to 2009. QMS manual in
the process of being drafted.

GAP analysis on
QMS for ISO
17020

GAP analysis completed on QMS for
ISO 17020.

Effective
management
and accounting
for development
initiatives

Develop and
implement
systems, proce-
dures and
measurements for
development
initiatives

Initiative deferred to 2009.

3. STRENGTHEN
PPECB’S CAPAC-
ITY AS A CREDIBLE
SOURCE OF
STRATEGIC
INFORMATION
FOR SERVING
INDUSTRIES AND
STAKEHOLDERS

Achieving
accurate SLA
business and
statistics
information

Extent of diffusion
of PPECB’s
standard codes
through service
providers

Implement tools,
procedures and
a measurement
scorecard to
ensure accurate
reporting of
information

Enhancements to data cubes and
extraction tools have been imple-
mented to increase scope and
accuracy of information delivered to
both internal and external
stakeholders.

Information was delivered as per SLA
agreements – grapes, pome fruit,
stone fruit and citrus - which meet
accuracy requirements as deter-
mined in SLAs.

53% of all shipping data received
electronically. The electronic shipping
data from some of the major cold-
stores at the habour included 100%
conventional data and a limited
amount of container data mostly
from the Durban port facilities.

Funding model
for the entire EDI
Project would
need to be
revisited, finalised
and signed off.
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INDICATORS
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YEAR 1: 2008/2009
PERFORMANCE PROGRESS EMERGING

ISSUES/
CHALLENGES

TARGET ACTION PLAN/
ACTIVITIES

STRATEGIC PLAN 2008 - 2013

SharePoint Systems (technical IT
enabling solution) to handle BI ad
hoc request implemented with
workflow.

Standardise
codes for
activities in fruit
industry

PPECB has made available, through
agreements with Global Systems 1
(GS1), ranges of SSCC (Serial Shipping
Container Code) numbers to the
South African fruit industry. These
labels can now also be printed on all
the mainstream pack house systems
or directly at the label manufacturers
at no extra cost compared to
traditional labels.

PPECB has developed information
standards together with service
providers. These standards are
published on the PPECB Web.
Outstanding standards include vessel
codes, destination countries and
count sizes, etc.

The EDI Project was revised and split
into 5 phases to ensure focus on the
objectives.

· Phase 1 _ Codes Standardisation

· Phase 2 _ Systems Planning

· Phase 3 _ Systems Design &
Development

· Phase 4 _ Implementation

· Phase 5 _ Project Closure

Phase 1 (Standard Codes) was
completed and signed-off.

3. STRENGTHEN
PPECB’S CAPAC-
ITY AS A CREDIBLE
SOURCE OF
STRATEGIC
INFORMATION
FOR SERVING
INDUSTRIES AND
STAKEHOLDERS

4. SUPPORT
GOVERNMENT IN
ENSURING
CONFIDENCE IN
QUALITY ASSUR-
ANCE AND FOOD
SAFETY SYSTEMS
FOR LOCAL
PERISHABLES
PRODUCTS
MARKETS

DoA policy on
food safety and
product quality”

Review of the
DoA Food Safety
and Product
Quality policy

A draft discussion document was
developed and submitted to DoA to
facilitate a discussion between PPECB
and DoA. Engagement with DoA is
ongoing.

A funding
mechanism will
have to be
considered by the
government.
Announcement
on the food safety
strategy will have
an impact on the
pace of these
developments.

Contribute in the
review and/or
development of
a country-wide
Food Safety and
Product Quality
policy

Development of
minimum country
capacity to
monitor local
perishables
market

Engagement with DoA ongoing.Contribute to the
assessment and
establishment of
a minimum ca-
pacity to monitor
local perishables
market
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STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

KEY
PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

2008/09 FINANCIAL YEAR

YEAR 1: 2008/2009
PERFORMANCE PROGRESS EMERGING

ISSUES/
CHALLENGES

TARGET ACTION PLAN/
ACTIVITIES

STRATEGIC PLAN 2008 - 2013

5. SUPPORT
GOVERNMENT IN
BUILDING
SYSTEMS TO
ENSURE COMPLI-
ANCE WITH
SOUTH AFRICAN
QUALITY AND
FOOD-SAFETY
STANDARDS FOR
IMPORTED
PERISHABLE
PRODUCTS

DoA policy on
food safety and
product quality

Review of the
DoA Food Safety
and Product
Quality policy

Contribute to the
review and/or
development of
DoA Food Safety
and Product
Quality policy

A draft discussion document was
developed and submitted to DoA to
facilitate a discussion between PPECB
and DoA. Engagement with DoA is
ongoing.

Funding mecha-
nism will have to
be considered by
the government.
Announcement
on the food
safety strategy
will have an
impact on the
pace of these
developments.
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Report by the

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

JOHAN SCHWIEBUS
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Financial Performance

PPECB’s primary sources of income are the fees and
levies received for statutory services rendered to
the perishable products industry.  A total of R124.2
million (2008: R103.1 million) has been raised from
this source compared to the projected R109.0
million.  The positive variance of R15.2 million is due
to increased volumes that have been exported from
South Africa.

Income received from delivering value added serv-
ices to our clients totalled R10.7 million (2008: R8.9
million), which is an improvement of R1.5 million on
the budget of R9.2 million.  These services include
certifications and laboratory analyses.  Other income
includes fees received for delivering training and
development of R1.6 million (2008: R0.5 million) and
interest of R6.2 million (2008: R3.7 million) that was
received this year.

Total expenditure for the year amounted to R125.4
million (2008: R104.2 million), which exceeded our
budgeted expenditure by R2.7 million (2.2%).  This was
caused by a planned accelerated expenditure pro-
gramme to replace technical and other operational
equipment that had been approved by the Board
of Directors.   Employee costs of R89.9 mi l l ion
represent the bulk of PPECB expenditure.  These costs
exceeded the budget by R1.5 million, primarily be-
cause of the use of contract personnel. Travelling
and subsistence expenditure of R14.5 million also

THIS YEAR’S RESULTS ARE CHARACTERISED BY GOOD VOLUMES EXPORTED, STRONG

INCOME GROWTH AND POSITIVE CASH GENERATION. THE KEY RESULTS ARE:

INCOME INCREASED BY 16.3% ON BUDGET TO REACH R142.7 MILLION;

EXPENSES INCREASED BY 2.2% ON BUDGET;

SURPLUS IS R17.4 MILLION; AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY IMPROVED BY

R19.3 MILLION.

exceeded the projections by R1.1 million, mainly due
to the increased fuel rates and certain allowances
introduced for staff  performing rel ief  duty for
extended periods of time.

Prudent and conservative measures are consistently be-
ing followed in managing PPECB’s expenditure levels.

Depreciation was R0.8 million, consisting mainly of

depreciating equipment.

No provision for taxation has been made as the Board
is not subject to normal tax.

The retained surplus for the year amounts to R17.4
million, and has been transferred in terms of the PPECB
Act to the General Reserve Account.

Financial Position

The balance sheet reflects a strong financial position
in that:

Cash reserves amount to R25.2 million (2008: R26.3

million);

Accounts receivable amount to R20.8 million
(2008: R15.8 million);

Accounts payable amount to R21.7 million (2008:

R21.2 million); and

Current and liquidity ratios - 3 times (2008: 3 times).

Total PPECB assets amount to R109.0m, consisting of
non-current assets of R16.6 million and current assets
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With sound management and

financial practices, however, the

PPECB will continue to add public

value to all its clients and remain

financially stable. I would like

to thank all of the financial and

administrative staff in PPECB

for their sterling efforts.

of R92.4 million. Non-current assets increased by
R3.2m to R16.6m, mainly due to the replacement of
computer hardware.

Financial assets, cash and equivalents increased by
R17.1m to R71.5m. PPECB has adequate cash re-
serves to meet its future commitments, and holds de-
posits at banks with Fitch ratings of AA and higher.

Accounts receivables of R20.9m increased by R5.0m
(33%) on last year’s R15.8m, due to the increase
in fees and levies, as well as volumes exported.
The average days outstanding are 42 days, which is
below our target of 55 days after invoice or 30 days
after statement.  The total amount outstanding for
longer than 60 days is R1.0m or 6% (2008: 8%) of
the total outstanding balance.  Of this amount, R0.5
million has been repaid in the subsequent month.
A provision of R0.3 million, or 1% of total debtors, has
been made for irrecoverable debt.

Trade payables of R21.7m were R0.5 million higher
than the previous year, mainly due to accrued

expenses on the accelerated expenditure
programme, which was approved by the Board of
Directors during the course of the year.

The realised surplus increased the reserve funds by
R17.3 million to R77.9 million.  These reserves have
been accumulated to fund shortfalls during times of
seasonal downturns, realisation of uninsured risks,
as well as to provide for future capital outlays in
replacing laboratory, technical and information
technology equipment.

Cash Flow

Cash and equivalents decreased by R1.1 million to
R25.1 million, mainly due to an increase in interest-
bearing investments.  Operating activities resulted
in a cash inflow of R21.1 million, which was reduced
by R4.1 million spent on the replacement of critical
information technology and laboratory equipment.
Surplus cash of R18.1 million has been invested in
investments held to maturity.
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Credit Risk by Debtors

Although there is an increased risk of default by trade
debtors in the current economic climate, to date we
have not experienced any adverse consequences
in this regard.  In order to manage this r isk as
effectively as possible, we have tightened our credit
criteria, particularly in those areas where we have
previously experienced default in payments.

Debtor balances will continue to be closely moni-
tored and managed, both from the perspective
of minimising the risk of bad debts and maximising
collections.

Conclusion

We expect that global and local markets wi l l
continue to see unusually high levels of uncertainty
and conditions for the South African producers and
exporters will remain difficult.  It is anticipated that
credit  market condit ions wi l l  cont inue to be
challenging.  The export performance for next year

is likely to be affected, which could place PPECB’s
resources, financial and otherwise, under pressure.
However, with sound management and good
financial practices PPECB will continue to add value
to all its clients and remain financially stable.

I  would l ike to thank al l  of  the f inancial  and
administrative staff at PPECB for their sterling efforts
in the last year and, in particular, for all their hard
work in delivering the financial results and this
annual report.  Their commitment and ongoing
support have enabled us to consistently deliver
quality financial information to our stakeholders.
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Statement on

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ADELA FORTUNE
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE PPECB CODE OF ETHICS IS
monitored by the Executives and the Risk Management
Committee and awareness of ethical behaviour is en-
couraged by regular communications with employees
and an externally monitored fraud and ethics hotline.
PPECB accepts its duty to address matters of signifi-
cant interest and concern to all stakeholders, taking
into account greater demand for accountability.

PPECB is required to comply with the Protocol on
Corporate Governance in the Public Sector, the
Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 and the
Perishable Products Export Control Board Act 9

of 1983.  PPECB is committed to maintaining the high-
est quality of corporate governance and subscribes
to the spirit and principles of the King II Report on
corporate governance in South Africa.  The Board
of Directors believes that it has complied, in all ma-

terial respects, with the provisions of the King II
Report and the applicable legislation.

Board of Directors

Our governance structures are in accordance with
the PPECB Act, with Board members being appointed

by, and accountable to, the Minister of Agriculture,
Forestry & Fisheries. The Board comprises of non-
executive directors who represent the industries in
which PPECB operates.  The PPECB Act defines the
roles and responsibilities of the Board.

PPECB directors are industry representatives, and are
skilled and experienced to bring judgment to bear
on crucial issues.  They understand the PPECB mission,
strategy and business.

The Board meets at least four t imes a year
(once every quarter) with special or additional
meetings convened as circumstances dictate.
Comprehensive Board documentation is prepared
and distributed in advance of each meeting, with
an opportunity to propose additional matters for
discussion at the meeting.

The Chairperson

Mrs Elaine Alexander is the chairperson of the Board
and is responsible for the effective functioning of the
Board, with her primary duties being to:

Preside over meetings of the Board of Directors
to ensure their smooth functioning;

Serve as the main informal link between the
Board and the executive management to
provide support and advice while respecting
executive responsibility;

Serve as the main link between the Board and
the Ministry for Agriculture, Forestry & Fisheries;

Ensure that regular and objective appraisals of
individual directors, as well as of the Board itself
and its committees, are completed to assess the
Board effectiveness;

Assist with the formulation of the annual work
plan for the PPECB Board and ensure that it is
strictly adhered to; and

Lead and direct the proceedings, deliberations
and decisions of the Board.

The chairperson is appointed for a period of two
years, with the current incumbent’s term of service
ending on 30 March 2010.

PPECB SEES GOOD GOVERNANCE AS ONE OF ITS DISTINGUISHING FEATURES,

UNDERPINNED BY A MULTI-STAKEHOLDER APPROACH. STAKEHOLDERS INCLUDE

GOVERNMENT, INDUSTRIES WE SERVE, EMPLOYEES, CLIENTS, THE COMMUNITY, AND

SERVICE PROVIDERS.  THE PPECB BOARD CONTINUES TO ENDORSE THE UNDERLYING

VALUES OF PROFESSIONALISM, ACCOUNTABILITY, PASSION, INTEGRITY AND

CONFIDENCE AND HAS RECOGNISED THE NEED TO PROVIDE TRANSPARENT,

RELEVANT AND MEANINGFUL REPORTING TO ALL STAKEHOLDERS.
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The Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr Luvuyo Mabombo, is
formally appointed by the PPECB Board and is in
charge of the organisation and responsible directly
to the Board.  The main tasks of the CEO are to man-
age the business on a sustainable basis, implement
strategies and policies approved by the Board and
serve as the chief spokesperson for the company.
The PPECB Board is responsible for monitoring the
overall functioning of the position of the CEO.

The Board has delegated to the CEO and other
senior management the authority to run the day-to-
day affairs of the company.  In addition to written
Board resolutions, levels of authority and materiality
delegated to management are approved by
the Board and are clearly recorded in the authority
matrix and materiality framework.

Board and Committee Structures and
Responsibilities

In order to discharge its duties more effectively, the
Board has approved and delegated authority for
specific matters to various committees. These com-
mittees have been established to ensure that opera-
tional performance and risk management are moni-
tored.  In this regard there is also a record of matters
specifically reserved for the Board’s decision.

These committees serve under written and approved
charters, which are reviewed and updated annually.
The minutes of all Board committee meetings are
presented to the PPECB Board for information.

A formal self-evaluation of the Board, committees
and the chairperson, aimed at improving the Board
effectiveness, is carried out annually and areas
of improvement or concern are identif ied and
addressed.

Specific responsibilities are delegated to committees
to support the functioning of the Board:

Audit Committee

Human Resources Committee

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three non-
executive directors and meets three times a year.
The members possess the necessary expert ise
to direct the committee constructively in the execu-
tion of its responsibilities. The Audit Committee has
adopted a charter, which has been approved by
the Board.

The committee acts in accordance with the Public
Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 and assists the
Board in preparing the PPECB financial statements.
The focus of the Audit Committee includes:

Ensuring the integrity of financial reporting;

Addressing the matters relating to financial and
internal control, accounting policies, reporting
and disclosure;

A formal self-evaluation of the

Board, committees and the

chairperson, aimed at

improving the Board

effectiveness, is carried out

annually and areas of

improvement or concern are

identified and addressed.
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Ensuring that there is effective risk management

and that all risks identified are exposed and

managed in a well-defined process; and

Reviewing and approving external audit plans,

findings, reports and fees.

The committee provides a forum through which the

external and internal auditors report to the Board.

It is also responsible for setting the principles for the

use of external auditors for non-audit services.

Members of the external and internal auditors have

unrestricted access to members of the Audit Com-

mittee and its chairman at all times, ensuring that

their independence is in no way compromised.

The current members are Mr Anton Rabe (Chair-

man), Mr Charles Atkins and Mr Louis Vorster.

All meetings are attended by the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, external and internal auditors.

Human Resources Committee

The Human Resources Committee, which meets three
times a year, has the mandate to:

Review all matters relating to human capital man-
agement;

Monitor compliance with relevant employment
and labour legislation;

Ensure that the company’s remuneration strate-
gies, packages and schemes are related to the
achievement of business objective and delivery
of mandate; and

Ensure appropriate human resources strategies,
policies and practices.
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The current members are Mr Manie Booysen (Chair-
man), Mrs Elaine Alexander and Mr Anton Rabe.

All meetings are attended by the Chief Executive
Officer and the Human Resources Executive.

Corporate Secretariat

PPECB employs a company secretary, Mrs Adela
Fortune. The company secretary implements well-
established practices and procedures to familiarise
Board members with the business of PPECB and
to induct them in their fiduciary duties and responsi-
bilities. Board members receive annual training
on their duties facilitated by reputable experts on
corporate governance.

All Board members have access to appropriate
information and to the advice and services of the
company secretary.  Independent professional ad-
vice is available to Board members in appropriate
circumstances at the company’s expense.

The Executive Committee

The Board delegates certain powers pertaining to
the day-to-day operations of PPECB to the CEO.  The
executive committee (Exco) assists the CEO in
executing these duties.

Exco is chaired by the CEO and currently comprises
of 6 members indicated in this report.  It meets
formally bi-monthly, with designated executive
members in attendance, and additional meetings
are scheduled as required.

Exco is mandated, empowered and held account-
able for implementing the strategies, business plans
and policies determined by the Board; managing
and monitoring the business affairs of the company
in line with approved plans and budgets; prioritising
the allocation of funds and other resources as
approved by the Board; and establishing best
management and operating practices.

Exco is also responsible for structured and trans-
parent management succession planning and the
identification, development and advancement
of the company’s future leaders.  Also within Exco’s
ambit is the setting of operational standards, codes
of conduct and corporate ethics.

ADMINISTRATION

External Auditors: Price Waterhouse Coopers

Internal Auditors: KPMG

Business address: PPECB, 45 Silwerboom Avenue
Plattekloof 7500, Republic of South Africa

Postal address: PPECB, P O Box 15289,
Panorama 7500, Republic of South Africa

Telephone: +27 21 9301134

Facsmile: +27 21 9396868

The Risk Management Committee

Risk management continues to be dynamic, evolv-
ing and integrated into the business.  It has become
increasingly important especially in the light of the
many changing elements, particularly in the context
of the volatile global economy and industry dynam-
ics.  While the Board is ultimately accountable
for risk management, executive management has
implemented various processes throughout the
business to ensure that risk management is part of
the day-to-day activities of the business.

The Risk Management Committee meets quarterly
and is focused on re-instilling discipline and account-
ability in the organisation; reversing lack of controls;
introducing other monitoring functions such as
uniform standards, as well as policies and procedures
to support business and overall effective manage-
ment activities.

Systems of internal controls exist to manage signifi-
cant r isks. The internal audit function provides
independent assurance to the Risk Management
Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of
the appropriate internal control processes through-
out the company.

The current members are Mrs A Fortune (Chairper-
son), Mr J Schwiebus, Mr Z Makhaye, Mr S Van Wyk,
Mr W Van Zyl, Mr N Mbokane, Mrs L Groenewald,
Mr R Robinson and Ms C Farrell (in attendance).
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Board and Committee Attendance Register

1 APRIL 2008 TO 31 MARCH 2009

Board of
Directors

A B A B A B

Alexander Ms E 5 5 * * 3 3

Atkins Mr CA 5 5 3 3 * *
Booysen Mr H P 5 5 * * 3 3
(observer)

Engelbrecht Ms C H 5 5 * * * *

Hawes Mr A M# 5 2 * * * *
Mannya Ms M 5 5 * * * *
(observer)

Mokoene Mr S E 5 4 * * * *

Rabe Mr A 5 5 3 3 3 3

Sixolo Ms M C 5 5 * * * *
Visser Dr M# 5 1 * * * *

Vorster Mr L 5 5 3 2 * *

Board /
Special
meetings
attendance

Attendance Audit
Committee
Composition

Attendance Human
Resource
Committee
composition

Attendance

A: indicates the number of meetings held during the year while the director was a member of the Board
and/or committee.

B: indicates the number of meetings attended during the year while the director was a member of the Board
and/or committee.

# Ministerial representative Dr Visser was replaced by Mr Hawes.
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Materiality Framework

The framework of acceptable levels of materiality and significance applied during 2008/09, for the purpose of
the interpretation of and compliance with the PFMA (as amended) is the following:

PFMA SECTION QUANTITATIVE (AMOUNT) QUALITATIVE (NATURE)

(1)

(c)

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Section 50
Fiduciary duties of accounting authorities
The accounting authority for a public entity must -

on request, disclose to the executive authority
responsible for that public entity or the legislature
to which the public entity or the legislature to
which the public entity is accountable, all material
facts, including those reasonably discoverable,
which in any way may influence the decisions
or actions of the executive authority or that
legislature;

Section 54
Information to be submitted by accounting
authorities
Before a public entity concludes any of the
following transactions, the accounting authority
for the public entity must promptly and in writing
inform the relevant treasury of the transaction and
submit relevant particulars of the transaction to
its executive authority for approval of the
transaction:

· participation in a significant partnership, trust,
unincorporated joint venture or similar
arrangement;

· acquisition or disposal of a significant
shareholding in a company;

· acquisition or disposal of a significant asset;

· commencement or cessation of a significant
business activity

Any fact discovered of
which the amount
exceeds the materiality
figure of R610,000 after
consultation with the
Audit Committee for the
year under review.

Acquisition or disposal of
a significant asset;

· Acquisition: More than
R500,000

· Disposal: More than
R250,000 except for
intellectual property
held by custodian

· Any item or event of
which specific
disclosure is required
by legislation, King
Report II or GAAP.

· Any fact discovered of
which its omission or
misstatement, in the
Board’s opinion, could
influence the decisions
or actions of the
executive authority or
legislature.

· Any participation
outside of the
approved strategic
plan and budget.

· Any acquisition or
disposal of any asset
that would increase or
decrease the overall
operational functions
of the Board, outside of
the approved strategic
plan and budget

· Disposal of the major
part of the assets of the
Board

· Any business activity
that would increase or
decrease the overall
operational functions
of the Board, outside of
the approved strategic
plan and budget
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Section 55
Annual Report and financial statements
The annual report and financial statements
referred to in subsection (1)(d) must-

· fairly present the state of affairs of the public
entity, its business, its financial results, its
performance against predetermined
objectives and its financial position as at the
end of the financial year concerned;

· include particulars of-

· any material losses through criminal conduct
and any irregular expenditure and fruitless
and wasteful expenditure that occurred
during the financial year:

· any criminal or disciplinary steps taken as a
consequence of such losses or irregular
expenditure or fruitless and wasteful
expenditure;:

· any losses recovered or written off;

· any financial assistance received from the
state and commitments made by the state
on its behalf; and

· any other matters that may be prescribed;

Section 66 (1)
Restrictions on borrowing, guarantees and other
commitments

PFMA SECTION QUANTITATIVE (AMOUNT) QUALITATIVE (NATURE)

· Losses through criminal
conduct - any loss
identified.

· Losses through any
expenditure - if the
combined total
exceeds the planning
materiality figure after
consultation with the
Audit Committee for
the year under review.

· Any irregular,
fruitless and wasteful
expenditure as defined
by the PFMA will be
reported

Rnil

Any identified loss
through criminal,
reckless or negligent
conduct.

This Public entity may
not borrow money, nor
issue a guarantee,
indemnity or security,
nor enter into any other
transaction that binds or
may bind the institution
to any future financial
commitment unless
acting through the
relevant executive
authority. (PFMA section
66(3)(c))

(2)

(a)

(b)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

No material irregular or fruitless and wasteful expenditure has occurred during the period under review.
No significant incidents of fraud occurred during the period under review.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2009

Report by the
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WE ARE PLEASED TO PRESENT OUR REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2009.

Audit Committee members and
attendance

The members of the Audit Committee for the period
under review were as follows:

Anton Rabe (Chairman)
Charles Atkins
Louis Vorster

The members are all independent non-executives
and have met three times during the period under
review. Both the internal and external auditors are
present at all Audit Committee meetings. A table
showing attendance at committee meetings is
available on page 31.

Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied
with its responsibilities arising from Section 38(1)a of
the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 3.1.13. The Audit
Committee also reports that it has updated and
adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as
its Audit Committee Charter, and have executed its
affairs in compliance with this charter and has dis-
charged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

Internal control

The Audit  Committee, together with the Risk
Management Committee, has reviewed the effec-
tiveness of the entity’s internal controls, which in-
clude financial, operational and compliance con-
trols, and procedures for identification, assessment
and reporting of risks, and has reported to the Board
on the outcome of this review. The Risk Management
Committee reports to the Audit Committee and
discharges its responsibilities in terms of the approved
Risk Management Charter.

Internal audit

During the period of under review, KPMG continued
to act as the internal auditors of PPECB.

In line with the PFMA and the King II Report of
Corporate Governance requirements, internal audit
provides the Audit Committee and management
with the assurance that the internal controls are ap-
propriate and effective. This is achieved by the risk
management process as well as the identification
of corrective actions and suggested enhancements
to the controls and processes.

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the
Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and
the management report of the Auditor-General SA,
it was noted that no significant or material non-com-
pliance with prescribed policies have been reported.
Accordingly, the Committee is satisfied that the
system of internal control over financial reporting for
the period under review was effective and efficient.

External Audit

The Audit Committee reviews the performance
of the external auditors and the level of audit service
provided and has recommended to the Board of
Directors the continued appointment of Pricewater-
houseCoopers for the financial year. In the period un-
der review the Committee has reviewed the scope of
the interim review and year end audit including the
Materiality level. Auditor independence is discussed
and confirmed at each meeting.

Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:

Reviewed and discussed the audited annual
financial statements to be included in the Annual
Report with the external auditors;

Reviewed the external audit management letter
and management’s responses thereto;

Considered matters such as consistency of
accounting policies and practices; and

Reviewed compliance with legal & regulatory
provisions.

We concur with and accept the internal audit
financial statements, and are of the opinion that the
audited financial statements should be accepted and
read together with the report of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee has therefore recommended the
adoption of the annual financial statements by the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on 21 May
2009.

............................................................. ...............................................

A Rabe Date
Chairperson of the
Audit Committee

20 May 2009
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Overview of

STATUTORY OPERATIONS

DEAN MARTIN
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THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW DEPICTS OUR FIRST YEAR OF A 5 YEAR STRATEGIC PLAN

APPROVED BY THE PPECB BOARD EARLY IN 2008. ALL MAJOR FRUIT PROGRAMMES,

CITRUS, GRAPES, AVOCADOS, POME AND STONE POSTED GOOD RESULTS AT YEAR-

END ROUNDING OFF A PERIOD WHERE COSTS WERE WELL CONTAINED AND EXPORT

VOLUMES SURPASSED EXPECTATIONS FOR THE SECOND YEAR RUNNING.

BESIDE THESE SATISFACTORY CORE RESULTS, STRATEGIC
milestones required the necessary operational energy
as we kept our organisation centred on adding value
to our clients. As we jostled to remain competitive in
the standards application and compliance monitor-
ing space vis-à-vis international benchmarks, we’ve
recognised our market’s evolution and shifts in the
macro-environment which prompted appropriate
introspection and measured responses. Some of the
exciting initiatives are reported on in this report.

Inspection services aimed at certifying every consign-
ment intended for export are part of the PPECB man-
date under the Agricultural Product Standards Act
of 1990. In order to increase our competitiveness and
access to markets, Statutory Operations initiated a
project to benchmark our sampling methodology to
international practices, visiting Chile, the UK and the
Netherlands for this purpose. This project is jointly
managed by PPECB and the Department of Agricul-
ture (DAFF). In line with international practices, the
risk profiling of horticultural exports from South Africa
is but one element explored and proposed as the
basis for certification. Due to the need to analyse
the data gathered for this project, we expect that
its impact will be felt only in the medium term.

Preventative measures taken within the cold chain
and logistical environment as part of risk manage-
ment during shipments have again contributed to-
ward huge savings not only for logistical companies
or shipping lines, but also for the exporters .

Increased international interceptions of phytosani-
tary risks like Citrus Black Spot (CBS) and Maximum
Residue Limit (MRL) have placed renewed focus on
local controls. Risk management practices have be-
come subject to scrutiny by overseas authorities who
are increasingly concerned about third country as-
surances of adequacy of controls. Recognising that

comprehensive measures are necessary to regain
lost ground internationally and to assist the govern-
ment in ensuring food control, PPECB has contributed
to the latest policy review of food control in the
country. Input in the form of policy commentary and
operational cooperation in updating the national
food business operators (FBO) database and MRL
lists with DoA was complemented by remaining
vigilant in interpreting SPS and TBT developments in
the world, thereby keeping the organisation at the
cutting edge of international developments.

Programme: Cold Chain Services

As we responded to our mandate to ensure orderly
exports, we focused our energy on making sure that
exported perishable products were handled, stored
and transported under optimum conditions and
specifications. During the period under review a
total of 2,524 manifests were audited, which equates
to 90,371 containers.  We recorded an 8.77%
rejection rate stemming from wrong documentation.
Container inspections executed at all 22 depots
nationally resulted in 146,552 inspections with a
rejection rate of 7.01%. A total of 297 cold stores were
inspected in all PPECB regions, of which 2.9% did not
conform to the prescribed standards and require-
ments. PPECB also surveyed 233 vessels before the
loading of South Afr ican perishable products.
Of these vessels a notable 21.2% were found to be
unsuitable. Although not an export requirement,
certification of RRMT vehicles has been conducted
by PPECB with excellent risk identification results.
During the 2009 fiscal year 1,554 RRMT vehicles were
inspected, with 5.1% found to be unsuitable for the
transportation of produce intended for export. All
reported activities successfully mitigated risks in the
supply chain for our clients and South African fruit in
general.
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During the 2008 season a total of 87,868 containers
were exported on 1,778 vessels, with 0.4% unsuitable

containers identified prior to loading and 0.48%
identified and rejected while in Transnet stacks. The
supervision of specialised Reefer Vessels loading took
place in all 4 ports. A total of 534,720 pallets were
exported on 254 shipments.

Temperature audits on vessels en-route to markets
from the Cape Town port office for predetermined
products resulted in 422 corrective actions, which
equates to 0.07% of the 1,444 vessels (83,663
containers) monitored.

Our cold chain expertise was relied on in various cold
chain forums, committees and working groups
during the reporting period. Technical information

and general support through formal and informal
engagements with our clients complemented the
exporters’ efforts to deliver their products in optimal
condition to overseas markets.

Programme: Inspection Services

During the 2009 financial year the certification desks

around the country processed 52,725 certificates, an
increase of 7.5% on the previous fiscal year. During
this period 3,360 certificates were found to contain

mistakes and had to be reissued, and 5,789 were
cancelled due to various reasons. These certificates

represent just short of 228 mil l ion cartons (12%
annual increase) and in excess of 260 mil l ion
kilogrammes of vegetables, flowers, maize, red tea
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Our cold chain expertise was relied on in

various cold chain forums, committees and

working groups during the reporting period.

Technical, information and general support

through formal and informal engagements

with our client’s complimented exporter’s

efforts in landing product in optimal

condition on overseas markets.

and other products. The total annual performance
was underscored by bullish citrus and pome perform-
ances. However, the total volume of exports with kg’s
as units of measure, represents an 8% reduction
compared to the same period last year, mainly due
to lacklustre vegetable exports.

The PPECB inspection services managed to respond
positively to this increase in activity with the aid of
the national resource planning office. This office en-
sured that all activity points were manned and that
mandated functions were executed successfully.

The Agricultural Export Technologist Programme
(AETP) proved hugely beneficial to the agricultural
industry, as well as to PPECB. PPECB has successfully
recruited new inspectors from this programme into
permanent posts all around the country. Training and
development of new inspectors continued once they
were employed permanently, as per requirements
of our internal competency framework.

Programme: Food Safety

Food safety within the agricultural industry remained
a top priority. The auditing of the food safety systems
of Food Business Operators (FBOs) in the South Afri-
can supply chain of perishable agricultural products
intended for export has helped to reassure the inter-
national markets. For the year in review PPECB con-
ducted 203 new audits and 244 surveillance audits.
All audits were closed out in the allocated time, and
it is most encouraging to report that no FBO’s were
prohibited from handling produce intended for export.

PPECB also remained committed to its awareness
drive of the minimum Food Safety Standards among
minor industries, with various radio talk shows, arti-
cles and workshops helping us achieve our goals in
this regard. Food safety is firmly imbedded as a fun-
damental building block in creating and maintain-
ing confidence in South African exports. With this in
mind PPECB, together with the DAFF and the indus-
try, continuously revisits the checklists used to con-
duct food safety audits in order to ensure that our
controls are in line with international requirements.

Programme: Citrus

The Citrus Programme experienced another record
season of exports overall. Exporters rallied as high
early pr ices secured a successful  market ing
campaign for lemons. An astonishing 33% increase

in lemon exports was recorded for the 2008 season.
Other citrus types and volumes also shifted at an
increasing pace. Eventually a total of 102 million
actual cartons, including re-inspections, were
inspected for export, representing an increase of
2.4% year on year.

The reporting period has also been characterised
by a relative increase in noncompliances of progres-
sive nature, such as decay, over maturity and rind
defects. These occurrences have resulted in prompt
adjustments which focused on compliance monitor-
ing at point of export.

Due to good efforts and work done within the Citrus
Programme, PPECB put forward further complemen-
tary measures for the control of Citrus Black Spot. Ac-
cepted by the DAFF, these measures complement
the current system by introducing a significant ele-
ment of prevention, as opposed to correcting prob-
lems once they are identified within the supply chain.

Marketers of the 2008 citrus volumes benefitted im-
mensely from the accurate and timely information
provided by PPECB through the season. Data gath-
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ering within the programme is very challenging as
variables such as the vast geographic footprint of
citrus production within South Africa and multiple
service types within the programme complicate in-
formation provision. As the organisation’s information
services still rely heavily on human intervention, a de-
served commendation and special word of appre-
ciation must go to all staff who have contributed to
the organisation receiving its information accolades.

Programme: Table Grapes

The table grape season could be described as
normal with the season starting with the usual
challenges. Overall the season started on time in the
Northern region and was one to two weeks late in
the Western Cape. Despite the late start in the Hex
River Valley combined with a seasons end around
three weeks prematurely, the estimated volumes
were still packed and exported. The mid December
to January heat contr ibuted to a 10% loss of
predicted volumes in the Berg River area and the
hastening of ripening of traditional late cultivars in
the Hex River. Export figures eventually recorded
were just short of 53 million cartons, representing a
2% increase year on year.

The initiative to harvest at optimal ripeness on all
cultivars by the industry during the reporting time re-
sulted in fewer claims from importers. This practice,if
not adhered to, is one of the numerous factors iden-
tified as a potential cause of berry discoloration.

Marketing conditions took a turn for the worst as the
latter part of the grape programme felt the effects
of the world economic crisis. Demand dropped
together with prices, causing decreased sales of
good quality table grapes.

The review period also saw PPECB continue its part-
nership with the grape industry in support of its com-
petitiveness by providing accurate and timely infor-
mation that enabled effective marketing decisions.

Programme: Subtropical and Other
Products

The 2008 avocado season reached a significant
volume of 12. 8 million cartons (equivalent), which

equates to a 32% increase in volume compared to
the previous season. This noteworthy increase makes
the 2008 crop the second highest crop of avocados
exported in South African history. Export markets re-
mained favourable throughout the season in spite
of higher volumes. The industry also had to contend
with a local market which continued to absorb large
quantities of avocados at fresh produce markets,
retail outlets and the informal sector.

Due to the volatility of volumes, cost containment
within this programme remains a challenge, de-
manding a “hands on” approach during manage-
ment of key activity drivers like overtime etc. Cost
recovery has nonetheless improved tremendously
since the launch of this programme, and this year a
positive net recovery result has been achieved
on cost management. Challenges do however still
remain, especially within the cold chain.

Active stakeholder engagement resulted in PPECB
assisting in the management of aflatoxin as a risk on
groundnuts; maturity testing of avocados as part of
a local market campaign; assistance with the
development of standards for groundnuts intended
for sale within South Africa; and the assistance with
the development of a food safety protocol for the
groundnut industry.

Programme: Pome and Stone Fruit

Amid threatening economic forces faced by stone
fruit marketers and natural challenges faced by pro-
ducers of stone fruit, the industry managed to post a
record 12 million cartons for export (10% increase
from the volume estimated for the year). The late
crop and the global economic crisis combined
made for a challenging 2008/9 season, but eventual
volumes supported the 3rd consecutive favourable
season for stone fruit producers. The general positive
sentiment resulted in many new plantings, suggest-
ing very good growth in future volumes.

Pome fruit producers and exporters also received
welcome news during 2008 with the acceptance for
export apples with a minimum size of 60mm/90g, and
50mm/70g apples with a minimum brix level of 10.5.
These decisions came into effect on the 1st of June



PP ECB -  ANNUAL REPORT 2008  -2009 41

2008, creating new market penetration opportunities
for exporters. On the whole, although pome fruit
performance expectations were fairly moderate,
inspection volumes were 27,9% (9,214,284 cartons)
above budget due to the positive exchange rate and
reasonable supply, which led to the most favourable
marketing environment in the last 12 months. As
experienced with the Bon Chretien exports that
reached record volumes, low pear stock in the EU had
a positive effect on pear exports overall.

Programme: Harmonisation

The Harmonisation programme, one of PPECB flagship
programmes, came to fruit ion during 2008. The
programme has as its objective the uniform interpre-
tation and application of product quality standards
and cold chain protocols and processes.  The
programme is internationally benchmarked and
endorsed at strategic level within PPECB. Resources
have been committed with the ult imate aim of
improved and value added service delivery.

Benchmarking within the programme coincided with
the attendance of no less than 5 international confer-
ences all aimed at harmonising standards among
inspectorates of EU member states, and, to a lesser
degree, import countries. The bi-annual UK Interna-
tional Meeting for Quality Control of Fresh Fruit and
Vegetables, the 27th International Meeting on Qual-
ity Control of Fruit & Vegetables in Germany, an OECD
Plenary Meeting in Paris, the UNECE Specialised Sec-
tion for Fresh Fruit and Vegetables in Geneva, Switzer-
land and attendance of a UNECE conference in Nai-
robi, Kenya, not only presented exceptional network-
ing opportunities for PPECB, but also excellent social
capital enhancing engagements with international
policy makers and import authorities. One of the high-
lights of the 2008 conferences were discussions around
the reform of marketing standards within the EU, fol-
lowing a decision by the European Commission on the
simplification of standards due to take effect in mid
2009. Opportunities were also used to influence the
development of international standards and to uphold
the status attached to the degree of diligence and
integrity associated with South African third country
inspections at point of export by the PPECB.
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Overview of

VALUE ADDED SERVICES

COMPETITION IN A GLOBALISED WORLD
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BUILDING AN INSTITUTION CAPABLE OF SUPPORTING GLOBAL COMPETITIVENESS HAS

LED THE PPECB INTO RELOOKING AT SOME OF ITS DECOMMISSIONED ISO PROJECTS

IN ORDER TO ENSURE THAT ITS SYSTEMS AND PEOPLE ARE GEARED UP TO THIS TASK.

THE BUSINESS HAS STEPPED-UP THE AUDITS ON ALL ITS ISO-BASED BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS. THIS IS IN PREPARATION FOR THE PROJECT INITIATED TO

ENSURE THAT THE INSTITUTION IS ISO 17020 (ISO ACCREDITED INSPECTIONS BODY)

ACCREDITED BY 2012. INVESTMENTS HAVE ALSO BEING MADE IN INSTITUTIONALISING

A HARMONISATION PROGRAMME IN SUPPORT OF THIS ACCREDITATION.

Analytical Programme

The analytical laboratory has focused on mycotoxin
analysis of foods and agricultural products since the
mid 1960s, and currently consists of three programmes:

Mycotoxin Analytical Programme (MAP) - nuts,

dried fruits, spices, pet foods and processed foods
by HPLC techniques;

Fats Analytical Programme (FAP) - food fats, nuts,
oilseeds and feed fats by general chemistry
techniques; and

Label ing Analyt ical Programme (LAP) -  new
programme started in 2009, focusing on food
labeling analysis by GC and HPLC techniques.

During 2008/09 the service excellence guarantee in-
cluded that if the mycotoxin analytical results not

available to customers within four working days after
authorisation of the service request, are rendered free

of charge. Approximately 90% of mycotoxin analyti-
cal results were available within 24 hours. Accuracy
was continuously certified by an independent inter-

national proficiency scheme in the UK. A 100% of cus-
tomers indicated during a customer survey that the

analytical services were either excellent or good.

Experience and specialised knowledge gained over

decades, has enabled the laboratory to expand its
services to the point where it can analyse up to 200

samples per day, making it one of the largest volume

mycotoxin analytical laboratories in the world. The

laboratory is currently in the process of replacing
obsolete equipment, a process that will continue

until the end of 2009. During the past decade the
laboratory has excelled in terms of its financial
viability, and has maintained the international ISO
17025 accreditation status.

Certifications Programme

The PPECB cert i f icat ion services cont inue to
maintain its market share and has added new
certifications schemes such as LEAF and 360 Audits
as part of its menu of services. In addition, the new
versions of BRC and HACCP certification audits have
also been successfully implemented.

The certification service menu includes (GlobalGAP;
BRC ( version 5); HACCP ( sans 10330:2007); LEAF;
360 Quality; TNC; and Supplier audits ( Pick ‘n Pay).

The certifications unit has maintained its accredita-
tion to ISO 17021 and ISO guide 65, as verified
by SANAS. The unit has also received an office
assessment under the GlobalGAP CIPRO
programme (scheme integrity programme).

Steady growth has been seen in the GLOBALGAP
certification scheme audits, however with the eco-
nomic downturn there has been a distinct decrease
in HACCP and BRC certification audits compared to
previous years.
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The PPECB brand loyalty remains strong within the
agriculture environment and we have been able
to meet market demands on pricing and service
delivery. Inroads have also been made in the
general food sector, with clients like the Cape Town
Convention centre (HACCP)  , Lourensford Winery
(BRC)  and Rhodes Food Group (HACCP and BRC) to
name a few.

The unit has also focused on creating market access
for emerging producers by providing pre-audits and
collaborating with the NAMC for service producers.

Capacity Building Initiatives

During the year under review training programmes
for emerging farmers were held in the Vhembe area,
covering cold chain requirements and GlobalGAP.
Additionally, donor funding was secured to create
GlobalGAP auditing capacity in Tanzania.  

The R&D Programme is

focused on developing

new knowledge about

perishable products,

processes, and

services,
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Research And Developement
Programme

The R&D Programme is focused on developing new
knowledge about perishable products, processes,
and services, which is then applied to create new
and improved products handl ing condit ions,
processes, and services that ensure a competitive
advantage for South African perishable products
on the global markets.

In its pursuit of improved cold chain management,
the R&D Programme has developed a Horizontal Air
Flow technology (HAF). This technology forces cold
air to flow horizontally through the fruit loads within
a reefer container (fig 1). This horizontal movement
of cold air mitigates the temperature variations that
are currently observed within loaded standard
40’ reefer containers.  The consequence of
temperature variations within a reefer container

may result in variable conditions of fruit from the
same load, and thus the HAF technology was
developed and patented by PPECB.

Business Processes

In 2008/2009 the project to seek ISO 17020
accreditation was approved. This accreditation

will further confirm the competencies of PPECB
personnel and serve to demonstrate to the

industry our commitment to maintain and develop
skills within PPECB.
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Overview of

HUMAN RESOURCES

ZAKHE MAKHAYE
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THE FOCUS DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW HAS BEEN ON SUSTAINING THE

MOMENTUM OF CREATING HUMAN RESOURCES CAPACITY THAT WOULD ENABLE

PPECB TO REALISE ITS FIVE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES THROUGH THE APPROVAL

OF A PEOPLE STRATEGY.

THE MAIN THRUST OF THE PPECB STRATEGIC PLAN HAS
been the elevation of people issues to a strategic
level with more emphasis being placed on people
having the skills that would help them to become
enablers of the business strategy. This approach stems
from the fact that by its very nature PPECB is a
knowledge inst i tut ion.  Consequently,  PPECB
activities are underpinned by appropriately aligned
people processes and practices.  With this objective

in mind PPECB saw the value of linking a people
strategy to the delivery of its strategic plan, with the
Board consequently approving the PPECB People
Strategy. The People Vision and Mission, which form
an integral part of the PPECB People Strategy, are
outlined below:

People Vision
To offer a conducive environment for dynamic
and knowledgeable people in order to build a
diverse workforce representative of the South African
society.

People Mission
Investing in people development

Creating an enabling environment

Applying best people processes

The People Strategy aims to deliver in the following
key areas:

Developing an integrated talent pipel ine
management;

Creating people capacity to deliver on business
strategy;

Support ing business st rategy through the
application of best people practices;

Creating intrinsic value for stakeholders; and

Entrenching employees’ wellness.

The following are some highlights of the initiatives
undertaken to ensure accelerated skills develop-
ment within a dynamic knowledge-based environ-
ment.

Harmonisation Programme

This  programme has ensured a uniform inter-
pretation of standards and processes within the
inspection and cold value chains through the
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application of accelerated learning principles. The
ultimate objective has been the transfer of skills
to young professionals recruited to PPECB and to
graduates of the Agr i -Export Technologists
Programme. The Harmonisation Programme has
been successfully rolled out for grapes and citrus,
with 168 employees completing it so far.

Leadership Development

Six senior inspectors are completing the final phase
of the New Managers Development Programme
offered by the Wits Business School, while four
managers have been enrolled with the Stellenbosch
Business School for 2009.  This initiative is yielding
good results already.

Agri-Export Technologists Programme

Since its inception, 78 students have been enrolled
in this programme, with only 9 of them still looking
for permanent employment, while all the others
have already been employed in the agricultural
sector. The first group of 48 graduates received their
NQF level 5 certificates during the reporting period,
while a further intake of 25 students is starting the
programme in June 2009.

Transformation has been made an integral part of
performance contracting at line management

level ,  and a committee has been set up to

deliberate on transformation barriers and strategies

to address them.
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In furtherance of our endeavours to apply best peo-
ple processes within PPECB, a new performance
management and incentive policy have been
introduced, with the overarching objectives  of  the
new performance management policy being the
recognition of good performance, retention of staff
and employee development. I ts  fundamental
principles are linking personal objectives to business
strategy, thus creating an opportunity for meaning-
ful engagement and stimulating challenge at an
individual level.The first performance management
cycle has been completed with success. A great
deal of  effort will be put into ensuring that the sytem
is well grounded. PPECB personnel and management
are to be  congratulated for taking up this challenge
with enthusiasm and positive attitude.

A new human resources information system has also

been rolled out, including self-administration of leave

function.This paperless process is addressing our goal
of applying  best people processes and managing

the risk associated with leave administration.

We are looking forward to the challenges and

excitiment of implementing the PPECB People Strat-

egy, which has the full support of the management

across the organisation.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records and the preparation and integrity of the financial statements and the related
information. The auditors are responsible for reporting on the fair presentation of the
financial statements. The financial statements presented on pages 5 to 26 have been
prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice and in
the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999.

The board of directors are also responsible for the Board’s system of internal financial
control. These are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to
the reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately safeguard, verify and
maintain accountability of the assets, and to prevent and detect misstatement and
loss. Nothing has come to the attention of the board of directors to indicate that a
material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has
occurred during the year under review.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, since the
board of directors have every reason to believe that the Board has adequate resources
in place to continue in operation for the foreseeable future.

Resources were obtained and used in accordance with the budget that was approved
by the board and presented to parliament and treasury as the legally adopted budget.

The financial statements set out on pages 5 to 26 were approved by the board of
directors on 21 May 2009 and are signed on it’s behalf by:

………………………… …………………………

E Alexander S E Mokoene
Chairperson of the Board Vice Chairperson
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

We have audited the annual financial statements of The Perishable Products Export
Control Board which comprises the directors report, the statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2009, the statement of financial performance, the statement of changes
in net assets, the cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 5 to 26.

Directors Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with South African Statement of Generally Ac-
cepted Accounting Principles, General Recognised Accounting Practices and in the
manner required by the Public Finance Management Act. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting poli-
cies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess-
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Board’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the finan-
cial position of the Perishable Products Export Control Board as at 31 March 2009, and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with South African Statements of General Accepted Accounting Practices, General
Recognised Accounting Practices and in the manner required by the Public Finance
Management Act of 1999.

Emphasis of Matter :
Perishable Products Export Control Act 9 of 1983
Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to the fact that certain value added
services rendered by the Perishable Products Export Control Board, could possibly be
outside the authorised services as set out in the Perishable Products Export Control Act
9 of 1983 and Regulations issued according to the terms of section 25 and published in
the Government Gazette No 9211 of 4 May 1984.

Other matters
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that the supplementary
information set out on page 27 does not form part of the annual financial statements
and is presented as additional information. We have not audited this schedule and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.

…….........……………………

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc
Director: JM Calitz
Registered Auditor

Cape Town
21 May 2009
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Introduction
The Board of Directors has pleasure in presenting its report and the audited financial
statements of the Perishable Products Export Control Board (The Board) for the year
ended 31 March 2009.

Ownership
The Perishable Products Export Control Board is a statutory entity and is listed as a Sched-
ule 3A, national public entity in South Africa. It is accountable to the Minister of
Agriculture and Land Affairs.

Principal Activities
The Board conducts its business by bringing about the orderly and efficient export of
perishable products from the Republic of South Africa, in terms of the Perishable Prod-
ucts Export Control Act 9 of 1983. It also operates as an assignee for the National De-
partment of Agriculture under the requirements of the Agricultural Products Standards
Act 119 of 1990. PPECB was established in 1926.

PPECB Board
The present members of the PPECB Board are:

Mrs E Alexander (Chairperson) Deciduous Industry Representative
Mr S E Mokoene (Vice Chairperson) Organised Agriculture Representative
Mr C A Atkins Fishing Industry Representative
Mr HP Booysen Observer
Ms MC Sixolo Vegetable Industry Representative
Ms CH Engelbrecht Citrus Industry Representative
Mr M Hawes Ministerial Representative
Mr A Rabe Deciduous Industry Representative
Mr L Vorster Subtropical Industry Representative
Ms BM Mannya Observer

Financial Results
The financial results of the Board are set out in the attached financial statements.

Going Concern
The Directors are of the opinion that the business will be a going concern for the fore-
seeable future.

Events Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date
No matter which is material to the financial affairs of the Board has occurred between
the balance sheet date and the date of approval of the financial statements.

Compliance With Legislation
The Department of Agriculture is in the process of reviewing the Perishable Products
Export Control Act 9 of 1983 and the Agriculture Products Standards Act 119 of 1990.
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Sections 51 and 55 of the Public Finance Management Act impose certain obligations
on the Board and these relate to the prevention, identification and reporting of all

fruitless, wasteful and irregular expenditure and collection of all revenue. In order

to comply with these obligations, the Board of Directors has prepared a materiality

framework.

The Directors believe that the Board has, during the year, complied, in all material

respects, with all legislation and regulations applicable to it, including without
limitation, the Public Finance Management Act, 1 of 1999, the Treasury Regulations

and the Income Tax Act, 58 of 1962.

Auditors
At a Board Meeting held on 11 May 2008, Price Waterhouse Coopers was reappointed

as external auditors of the Board.

The Board’s internal audit is outsourced to KPMG.

Company Secretary
The Board’s Secretary is Ms Adela Fortune.

Remuneration Report
Board of Directors

The Directors of the Board are appointed by the Minister of Agriculture and Land

Affairs for a three-year term.

Fees paid to the Directors vary based on their appointments to the various committees

of the Board.

Fees paid to the Directors serving on the Board of Directors as at 31 March 2009 are:

FEES OTHER PAYMENTS 2009 2008

Mrs E Alexander (Chairperson) 114,536 31,440  145,976 114,469

Mr S E Mokoene (Vice Chairperson) 58,215 1,807  60,022 53,285

Mr C A Atkins 80,282 40,957  121,239 161,277

Mr HP Booysen 84,086 0  84,086 134,095

Ms MC Sixolo 47,028 3,130  50,158 68,447

Ms CH Engelbrecht 47,028 10,308  57,336 79,268

Mr A M Hawes 7,838 293  8,131 144,838

Mr A Rabe 107,600 3,273  110,873 119,168

Mr L Vorster 70,542 53,668  124,210  -

Ms BM Mannya 39,190 5,389  44,579  -

Mr G G Burelli  -  -  - 103,983

Ms T Sinoamadi  -  -  - 83,080

 656,345  150,265  806,610  1,061,911
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Executive Management Members

All senior executives of the Board are employed on a full-time basis.

Remuneration paid to Executives in service of the Board on 31 March 2009 are:

ALLOWANCE
SALARY BENEFIT FUND RETIREMENT

PAID CONTRIBUTION PAYMENTS OTHER 2009 2008

Mr L Mabombo 1,108,987 216,215 188,124 231,931  1,745,257  215,451

Mr D Martin 578,658 212,208 67,043 160,701  1,018,610  754,780

Dr G Bruwer 529,306 235,523 74,103 937,561  1,776,493  779,456

Mr JA Schwiebus 769,342 125,491 147,529 179,242  1,221,604  866,356

Mr Z Makhaye 380,586 13,546 45,670 131,284  571,086  -

Ms A Fortune 398,163 272,126 47,780 48,981  767,050  649,162

 3,765,042  1,075,109  570,249  1,689,700  7,100,100  3,265,205

DIRECTORS’ REPORT  - CONTINUED

A performance bonus was paid to the employees of PPECB according to the
principles as approved by the Board of Directors in May 2008. This bonus payment
related to the 2008 financial year. The amount that was allocated to the executive
management members totalled to R62 099. The bonus payment is not included in
the amounts above.
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The notes set out on pages 12 to 26 form an integral part of the statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2009 2008

NOTES  R  R

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 5  16,640,086  13,419,122

 16,640,086  13,419,122

Current assets

Financial assets - Held to maturity 6  46,369,940  28,189,974

Trade and other receivables 7  20,803,416  15,783,568

Cash and cash equivalents 8  25,182,127  26,272,057

 92,355,483  70,245,599

Total assets  108,995,569  83,664,722

NET ASSETS

Reserves

Reserve fund 58,904,366  43,198,997

Self - insurance reserve  3,690,000  3,160,000

Asset replacement fund  5,582,071  4,459,113

Revaluation reserve  9,791,263  9,791,263

Net Assets  77,967,700  60,609,373

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 9  21,656,665  21,195,122

Receiver of Revenue - Value Added Tax  912,984  671,983

Provisions 10  8,458,220  1,188,244

31,027,869  23,055,349

Total equity and liabilities 108,995,569  83,664,722
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The notes set out on pages 12 to 26 form an integral part of the statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2009 2008

NOTES  R  R

Revenue 11  134,880,025  112,057,280

Other income 12  7,843,810  5,960,925

Employee compensation and benefits 13, 18  (89,884,988)  (76,103,143)

Operating expenses 13  (35,463,922)  (28,109,661)

Operating surplus  17,374,925  13,805,401

Finance costs 14  (16,598)  (8,491)

Surplus for the year  17,358,327  13,796,910
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The notes set out on pages 12 to 26 form an integral part of the statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

2009 2008

NOTES  R  R

Surplus levy for disposal in terms of

Section 18(8) and (9) of Act No 9 of 1983

At beginning of year  -  -

Surplus for the year  17,358,327  13,796,910

Transfer to self-insurance reserve  (530,000)  (530,000)

Transfer from / (to) asset replacement fund  (1,122,958)  5,671,365

Transfer from revaluation reserve on revaluation of property  -  1,164,787

Transfer to reserve fund  (15,705,369)  (20,103,062)

At end of year  -  -

Reserve fund
At beginning of year  43,198,997  23,095,935

Transfer from surplus levy for disposal in terms of
Section 18(8) and (9) of Act No 9 of 1983  15,705,369  20,103,062

At end of year  58,904,366  43,198,997

Self - insurance reserve 2

At beginning of year  3,160,000  2,630,000

Transfer from surplus levy for disposal in terms of
Section 18(8) and (9) of Act No 9 of 1983 530,000  530,000

At end of year  3,690,000  3,160,000

Asset replacement fund 2

At beginning of year 4,459,113  10,130,478

Transfer from / (to) surplus levy for disposal in terms of
Section 18(8) and (9) of Act No 9 of 1983  1,122,958  (5,671,365)

At end of year  5,582,071  4,459,113

Revaluation reserve 2

At beginning of year  9,791,263  3,278,263

Revaluation of property  -  7,677,787

Transfer to surplus levy on revaluation of property  -  (1,164,787)

At end of year 9,791,263  9,791,263

The Board applied to the Minister of Agriculture and Land Affairs for approval of a reserve fund of
R75 000 000. The current level of reserve fund, which was approved by the minister in October 2004,
is R46 306 834.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2009 2008

NOTES  R  R

Cash Flow from Operating Activities  21,145,993  16,118,008

Net cash received from customers  147,743,683  120,644,846

Less: Paid to employees and suppliers  (132,820,234)  (108,221,760)

Net cash generated by operations 17  14,923,449  12,423,086

Interest received  6,239,142  3,703,413

Interest paid  (16,598)  (8,491)

Cash Flow from Investment Activities  (22,235,923)  (5,498,284)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (4,057,474)  (350,094)

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment  1,517  453

Increase in investments held to maturity  (18,179,966)  (5,148,643)

Financing activities  -  -

(Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (1,089,930)  10,619,724

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year  26,272,057  15,652,333

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 8  25,182,127  26,272,057
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information
PPECB (The Board) is a statutory organisation which conducts its business in terms of
the Perishable Products Export Control Act 9 of 1983. The Board also operates as an
assignee for the National Department of Agriculture under the requirements of the
Agricultural Product Standards Act 119 of 1990.

PPECB is a Section 3A Public Entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act of
1999. The registered office is 23 Silverboom Avenue, Plattekloof, Cape Town

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the South African
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP) including any
interpretations of such Statements issued by the Accounting Practices Board, with the
prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued
by the Accounting Standards Board replacing the equivalent GAAP Statements as
follows:

Standard of GRAP Replace Statement of GAAP

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements

AC101: Presentation of financial statements

GRAP 2: Cash flow statements AC118:

Cash flow statement

GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

AC103: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

The recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP Statements
do not differ or result in material differences in items presented and disclosed in the
financial statements.

The implementation of GRAP 1,2 & 3 has resulted in the following significant changes in
the presentation of the financial statements.

I) TERMINOLOGY DIFFERENCES:

Standard of GRAP Replace Statement of GAAP

Statement of financial performance Income statement

Statement of financial position Balance sheet
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Statement of changes in net assets Statement of changes in equity

Net assets Equity

Surplus/deficit for the period Profit/loss for the period

Accumulated surplus/deficit Retained earnings

Contributions from owners Share capital

Reporting date Balance sheet date

II) THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT CAN ONLY BE PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

DIRECT METHOD.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings, financial assets and financial
liabilities held at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with SA GAAP requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process applying of its accounting policies. The areas requiring a
higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are set out in note 4.

A) STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE IN 2009

Amendment to IAS 1: Introduces disclosures about the level of an entity’s capital and
how it manages its capital.

IAS 1 Revised, Presentation of Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2009)

IFRS 7: Introduces new requirements to improve the information on financial instruments
that is given in an entity’s financial statements. It requires disclosures about the
significance of financial instruments for an entity’s financial position and performance.
These disclosures incorporate many of the requirements previously in IAS 32 (AC 125).
The Statement also requires information about the extent to which the entity is exposed
to risks arising from financial instruments, and a description of management’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks.

B) STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE IN 2009 BUT NOT RELEVANT

Certain new accounting standards, interpretations and amendments have been pub-
lished that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2008 or
later periods but which the Board has not early adopted. None of these new standards,
interpretations and amendments as set out below are deemed relevant to the Board’s
operations.

IS23 Borrowing Cost
IS32 Financial Instruments - Presentation of puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidity
IFRS 8 Operating Segments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  - CONTINUED



F I N A N C I A L  R E V I E W  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  3 1  M A R C H  2 0 0 9

PP ECB -  ANNUAL REPORT 2008  -2009 63

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty program
IFRIC 15 Agreement for construction of real estate

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a net investment in foreign operations

C) STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED STANDARDS THAT

ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have
been published that are mandatory for the Board’s accounting periods beginning on

or after 1 April 2009 or later periods but which the Board has not early adopted, as
follows:

IAS 27 Revised, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements ( effective July 2009)

IFRS 3 Revised, Business Combinations (effective July 2009)
IFRIC 17 Distribution of non cash assets to owners

IFRIC 18 Transfer of assets from customers
GRAP 04, The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

GRAP 06, Consolidated financial statements

GRAP 07, Investment in associates
GRAP 08, Interest in joint ventures

GRAP 09, Revenue from exchange transactions
GRAP 100, Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

GRAP 101, Agriculture

GRAP 102, Intangible Assets
GRAP 10, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

GRAP 11, Construction Contracts
GRAP 12, Inventories

GRAP 13, Leases

GRAP 14, Events after the reporting date
GRAP 16, Investment property

GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment
GRAP 18, Segment reporting

GRAP 19, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

GRAP 23, Revenue form non exchange transactions
GRAP 24, Budget information

Management have considered the above and concluded that it will not have a
material effect on the Board’s results. This will be reassessed in the future.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

Land and building comprise mainly office buildings. Freehold land and buildings are
shown at fair value, based on valuations by external independent valuers every three
years, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at
the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset,

and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other property,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  - CONTINUED
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plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Board and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in carrying value arising on revaluation are credited directly to the
revaluation reserve. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against the revaluation reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are
charged to the income statement.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives. The useful lives are approximately:

 - Buildings 50 years
 - Furniture and equipment 3 - 10 years
 - Technical equipment 3 - 8 years
 - Motor vehicles 5 years
 - Computer equipment 3 - 7 years

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Minor assets of R5 000 or less are charged to the
income statement in full as an expenditure in the year purchased.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amounts. These are included in the income statement. When revalued assets are sold,
the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the reserve fund.

2.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as land, are not subject to depreciation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  - CONTINUED
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2.4 Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include investments, cash and bank
balances, receivables, trade creditors and provisions. The particular recognition meth-
ods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each
item.

The directors are of the opinion that the carrying value of financial instruments
approximate fair value.

2.5 Financial assets

The Board classifies its financial assets as held to maturity. Management determines
the classification of financial assets at initial recognition.

This applies to investments where there are fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity dates and the Board has the positive intent and ability to keep the invest-
ments until maturity. These investments are measured and recognised at amortised
costs with interest-income recognised in the income statement.

Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are expected to be

realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

The Board assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as the
difference between the acquisit ion cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss – is
removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.

2.6 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Board will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delin-
quency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables.  Subsequent recoveries of the amounts
previously written off are credited in the income statement.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  - CONTINUED
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2.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
on the balance sheet.

2.8 Trade payables

Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.9 Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Board has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

2.10 Reserves

I) SELF-INSURANCE RESERVE:

A self-insurance fund was established to manage the uninsured risks of the Board.

II) ASSET REPLACEMENT FUND:

This reserve was established to provide for the replacement of computer and
technical equipment.

III) REVALUATION RESERVE:

This reserve was established due to surpluses that were generated on the revaluation
of land and buildings.

2.11 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the
sale of services in the ordinary course of the Board’s activities. Revenue is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, net of Value Added Tax.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Board. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to
the delivery of service have been resolved. The Board bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired the Board reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount being the future estimated cash flow discounted at the original

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  - CONTINUED
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effective interest arte of the instrument. Interest income on impaired loans is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

2.12 Offsetting

If the Board undertakes, in the course of its ordinary activities, transactions that do not
generate revenue but are incidental to its main revenue-generating activities, the
results of such transactions are presented by netting any income with related expenses
arising on the same transaction, when this presentation reflects the substance of the
transaction or other event.

2.13 Leases

Leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

2.14 Retirement benefits

The Board’s contributions to the defined contribution plans are charged to the income
statement in the year to which they relate.

3. FinancialRisk Management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Board’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The board acknowledges its responsibility for establishing and communicating
appropriate risk and control policies and ensuring that adequate risk management
processes are in place. The audit committee is in place to assist the board in
discharging its risk management obligations.

The principal objectives of risk management are to:

Review the Board’s risk philosophy, strategy, policies and processes recommended
by senior management;

Review compliance with risk policies and with the overall risk profile of the Board;

Review and assess the integrity of the process and procedures for identifying,
assessing, recording and monitoring of risk;

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Board’s risk management function
and its implementation by management;

Ensure that material risks have been identified, assessed and receive attention.

The Board’s risk management processes, of which the systems of internal, financial and
operating controls are an integral part, are designed to control and monitor risk

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  - CONTINUED
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throughout the Board. For effectiveness, these processes rely on regular communica-
tion, sound judgement and a thorough knowledge of statutory and operational
activities. Management is tasked with integrating the management of risk into the
day-to-day activities of the Board.

MARKET RISK

(I) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
Foreign currency risk is created due to the influence of exchange rate fluctuations.

The Board has a policy not to take out cover on outstanding foreign currency
transactions due to the fact that these take place on an ad hoc basis.

At balance sheet date, the Board had no f inancial  assets held in foreign
denominated currencies.

II) CASH FLOW AND FAIR VALUE INTEREST RATE RISK

The Board’s interest rate risk arises from investments held to maturity as well as from
cash and cash equivalents. The Board’s policy is to maintain its investments across a
range of high-credit-quality financial institutions. Interest rate exposure and investment
allocations are evaluated by management on a regular basis. This risk is managed by
maintaining an appropriate mix of investments with registered financial institutions.
Interest bearing investments are held with reputable financial institutions in order to
minimise exposure.

The sensitivity of the Board’s cash flow to a change of 100 basis points in interest rates
for variable rate instruments at the reporting date would have impacted net results by
R0,72 million (2008: R0,54 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain
constant.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is managed on an entity’s basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit expo-
sures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

The Board only banks with major financial institutions of high credit standing. The table
below shows the credit ratings and balances of the financial institutions in which the
Board held deposits at balance sheet date.

Measures taken by the Board to limit credit risk to acceptable levels include, inter alia,
assesses the credit quality of the customer taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors, the application of standard credit acceptance
procedures to assess potential clients, daily monitoring of collectible balances at both
branch and head office level and the suspension of services to accounts which
exceed the Board’s payment terms.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  - CONTINUED



F I N A N C I A L  R E V I E W  F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  3 1  M A R C H  2 0 0 9

PP ECB -  ANNUAL REPORT 2008  -2009 69

The table below shows the balances of the major counterparties at the balance sheet date.

Financial Institutions:

FITCH 2009 2 0 0 8

CREDIT RATING R R

Standard Bank AA+  25,182,127  26,272,057

First National Bank AA+  14,066,931  3,197,211

Nedbank AA  22,103,516  19,665,698

ABSA AAA  10,199,493  5,327,065

71,552,067  54,462,031

Account holders with amounts above R500 000 at balance sheet date:

CREDIT 2009 2 0 0 8

 LIMIT R R

Customer A  3,000,000  894,683  1,697,212

Customer B  2,500,000  561,055  714,811

Customer C  1,550,000  1,534,423  555,990

 7,050,000  2,990,161  2,968,013

The carrying amounts of financial assets included in the balance sheet represent the Board’s exposure to
credit risk in relation to these assets. Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Board’s exposure to concentrated credit risk is low due to the large number of customers and their
dispersion across different geographical areas and product sectors. The dispersion of our income per
product sector from statutory levies is:

Citrus fruit 41%

Grapes 20%

Pome fruit 19%

Stone fruit 5%

Subtropical fruit 3%

Vegetables 1%

Flowers and bulbs 1%

Canned products 1%

Other products 9%
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash reserves. Due to the dynamic nature of
operational activities, the Board aims to be conservative in funding by keeping committed cash reserves
available.

Forecasted liquidity reserve per balance sheet date is as follows:
2009 2010 - 2013

R R

Opening balance  26,272,057  25,182,127

Operating proceeds  147,743,683  738,718,000

Operating cash flows  (126,597,690)  (632,989,000)

Cash outflow for investments  (22,235,923)  (111,180,000)

Closing balance for period  25,182,127  19,731,127

The table below analyses the Board’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remain-
ing period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flow. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the

impact of
discounting is not significant.

2009 2 0 0 8

R R

Trade and other payables:

1 year 21,656,665  21,195,122
2 to 5 years  -  -
over 5 years  -  -

Closing balance for period  21,656,665  21,195,122

3.2 Capital risk management

Capital is regarded as total reserves which are a result of accumulated surpluses. The Board strives to maintain
a sufficient reserve as to sustain it’s statutory obligations. The level of the reserves are dependant on the
approval of the Minister of the Department of Agriculture as mentioned in the Statement of Changes in Net
Assets on page 10.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Board for similar
financial instruments.

The directors are of the opinion that the carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other fac-
tors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Board makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. These estimates and assumptions have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
These estimates relate to the provision for bad debts.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Board uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. The asset replacement reserve balance
estimate has been adjusted by the difference in the dollar foreign exchange and the production price index
for the year ended March 2009 for imported appliances and instruments for measuring, checking and testing
activities.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment
5.1 Land and buildings

2009 2008

R  R

Property, plant and equipment 16,640,086  13,419,122

Land and buildings 12,356,475  12,493,316

Cape Town - Erf 19927, Parow with office building thereon 9,518,981  9,608,788

Book value as at 1 April  9,608,788  4,162,892

     Cost  2,000,679  2,000,679

     Accumulated surpluses on revaluation of land and buildings 7,644,321  3,105,321

     Accumulated depreciation  (36,212)  (943,108)

Additions in the year  -  -

Revaluation of land and buildings  -  5,531,431

     Cost  -  4,539,000

     Accumulated depreciation  -  992,431

Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the year  (89,807)  (85,535)

Cost  2,000,679  2,000,679

Accumulated surpluses on revaluation of land and buildings 7,644,321  7,644,321

Accumulated depreciation (126,019)  (36,212)

Book value as at 31 March 9,518,981  9,608,788

The property was revalued by BM Hofmeyr, a registered valuer as
at 31 December 2007. Valuations were made on the basis of recent
market transactions, rentals of similar properties in the area and an
insurance valuation of the property.
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2009 2 0 0 8

 R  R

Durban - Portion 1 of Erf 1736, Wentworth
with office building there on 2,837,494  2,884,528

Book value as at 1 April 2,884,528  765,101

     Cost 753,058  753,058

     Accumulated surpluses on revaluation of land and buildings 2,146,942  172,942

     Accumulated depreciation (15,472)  (160,899)

Additions in the year  -  -

Revaluation of land and buildings  -  2,146,356

     Cost  -  1,974,000

     Accumulated depreciation  -  172,356

Depreciation for the year  (47,034)  (26,929)

Cost 753,058  753,058

Accumulated surpluses on revaluation of land and buildings 2,146,942  2,146,942

Accumulated depreciation (62,506)  (15,472)

Book value as at 31 March 2,837,494  2,884,528

The property was revalued by C Hearn, a registered valuer as
at 1 January 2008. Valuations were made on the basis of recent
market transactions, rentals of similar properties in the area and
an insurance valuation of the property.

5.2 Motor vehicles

Motor vehicles 326  24,310

Book value as at 1 April  24,310  41,075

Cost 103,454  103,454

Less: Accumulated depreciation (79,144)  (62,379)

Depreciation for the year (23,984)  (16,765)

Cost 103,454  103,454

Less: Accumulated depreciation (103,128)  (79,144)

Book value as at 31 March 326  24,310
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5.3 Furniture and equipment

2009 2 0 0 8

 R  R

Furniture and equipment 595,071  437,051

Book value as at 1 April  437,051  558,879

     Cost  2,370,014  2,347,623

     Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,932,963)  (1,788,744)

Additions in the year 326,470  25,566

Disposal in the year  -  -

     Cost  -  (3,175)

     Less: Accumulated depreciation  -  3,175

Depreciation for the year (168,450)  (147,394)

Cost 2,696,484  2,370,014

Less: Accumulated depreciation (2,101,413)  (1,932,963)

Book value as at 31 March 595,071  437,051

5.4 Technical equipment

Technical equipment  3,688,214  464,446

Book value as at 1 April  464,446  567,951

     Cost  10,829,811  10,772,413

     Less: Accumulated depreciation  (10,365,365)  (10,204,462)

Additions in the year  3,731,004  324,528

Disposal in the year  (8)  (4,299)

     Cost  (8)  (267,130)

     Less: Accumulated depreciation  -  262,831

Depreciation  (507,228)  (423,734)

Cost  14,560,807  10,829,811

Less: Accumulated depreciation  (10,872,592)  (10,365,365)

Book value as at 31 March  3,688,214  464,446

6. Financial Assets Held to Maturity

FNB 14,066,931  3,197,211

Nedbank 22,103,516  19,665,698

ABSA 10,199,493  5,327,065

46,369,940  28,189,974
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7. Trade and Other Receivables
2009 2008

NOTES  R  R
Trade and other receivables

Trade debtors  20,864,888  15,787,728

Provision for impairment of receivables (302,592)  (213,663)

20,562,296  15,574,065

Sundry debtors 434,904  799,348

Provision for loss on amounts receivable  (193,784)  (589,845)

 20,803,416  15,783,568

As of 31 March 2009, trade receivables of R19.4 million
(2008: R13.9 million) were fully performing.

Trade receivables that are less than 30 days past due
are not considered impaired. As of 31 March 2009,
trade receivables of R1.2 million (2008: R1.6 million)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

Between 30 and 60 days after statement  312,168  275,064

Greater than 60 after statement  887,867  1,377,798

 1,200,035  1,652,862

As of 31 March 2009, trade receivables of R302 592
(2008: R213 663) were impaired and provided for.
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate
to producers and exporters, who are in unexpectedly
 difficult economic situations. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

Less than one year  158,143  156,421

Between one and three years 114,015  57,242

Greater than three years 30,434  -

At 31 March 302,592  213,663

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
 receivables are as follows:

At 1 April  213,663  146,661

Provision for receivable impairment  302,592  213,663

Unused amounts reversed (213,663)  (146,661)

At 31 March  302,592  213,663
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8. Cash and cash equivalents
2009 2008

NOTES  R  R
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand 21,250,122  19,682,949

SA PIP - Current and Call Account (Note 9) 3,932,005  6,589,108

25,182,127  26,272,057

The SA PIP balance above is not available for use by
the PPECB as it relates to a bank account held by
PPECB on behalf of SA PIP. PPECB is not permitted to
use the funds for their own purpose.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, the cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following;

Cash and cash equivalents 25,182,127  26,272,057

 25,182,127  26,272,057

The effective interest rate is between 0.1% and 11.1%.

9. Trade and other payables

Accrued expenses 13,979,226  11,347,959

SA PIP Project Funds (note 8) 3,932,005  6,589,108

External Audit Fees 314,890  236,600

Internal Audit Fees 187,517  167,620

Agricultural product samples 82,410  89,208

Workmen’s compensation 291,811  156,390

Debtor deposits 2,868,806  2,608,237

21,656,665  21,195,122

10. Provisions

At 1 April 2008  1,188,244  -

Provision for performance incentive 8,458,220  1,188,244

Used during the year (1,188,244)  -

At 31 March 2009 8,458,220  1,188,244

The provision

Provision for performance incentive  8,458,220  1,188,244

The performance incentive payout is subject to
approval by the Board.
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11. Revenue
2009 2008

NOTES  R  R

Agricultural product standards levies 89,299,614  73,115,379

Perishable products export levies 29,215,435  24,419,559

Container inspections 2,686,094  2,428,573

Value added services 10,729,810  8,949,261

Other services 2,949,072  3,144,508

134,880,025  112,057,280

12. Other income

Interest received 6,239,142  3,703,413

Management fee - SA PIP -  1,766,109

Training and development 1,603,159  491,403

Profit on disposal of fixed assets 1,509  -

7,843,810  5,960,925

13. Expenses by nature

Employee expenses  89,884,988  76,103,143

Operational activity expenses  21,286,870  14,497,342

Computer expenses  4,246,023  3,895,290

Office occupancy expenses  3,002,762  2,811,950

Administrative expenses  2,123,887  2,581,257

Depreciation  836,503  700,357

Corporate identity and stakeholder communication  1,153,442  804,235

Rental and lease expenses  2,188,766  2,143,390

External audit fees  396,590  238,500

Current year  314,890  236,600

Prior year under provision  27,400  1,900

Other services 54,300  -

Loss on sale of fixed assets  -  3,846

Legal fees  229,079  433,494

 125,348,910  104,212,804

14. Finance costs

Finance charges  16,598  8,491
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15. Tax
2009 2008

NOTES  R  R

No provision for tax has been made as the Board is
not subject to normal income tax. Refer Income
Tax Act (Act 58 of 1962), Chapter 2, Part 1,
Section 10,(1) ,(cA), (i),(bb)

16. Commitments

Capital commitments

No contractual commitments for future capital
expenditure were made.

Operating lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Not later than 1 year  2,027,252  1,310,744

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  880,363  2,497,282

Later than 5 years  614,144  -

 3,521,759  3,808,026

17. Reconciliation of surplus for the year

Net surplus for the year  17,358,327  13,796,910

Adjusted for:

Depreciation  836,503  700,357

Interest received  (6,239,142)  (3,703,413)

Interest paid  16,598  8,491

(Profit)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets  (1,509)  3,846

Cash inflow before changes in working capital  11,970,777  10,806,191

Changes in working capital  2,952,672  1,616,895

Decrease in accounts receivable  (5,019,848)  (2,626,641)

Increase in accounts payable and provisions  7,972,520  4,243,536

Net cash generated by operations  14,923,449  12,423,086
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18. Employee compensation and benefits
2009 2008

NOTES  R  R

Salaries and wages  82,469,772  69,484,521

Defined contribution costs - retirement fund  7,415,216  6,618,622

 89,884,988  76,103,143

19. Related party transactions

Related party transactions are for services rendered
and outstanding balances arising from these services.

Some of the directors of PPECB serve on the boards of
companies that have statutory arms length transactions
with PPECB of R2,117,353 (2008: R2,980,801) and are
outstanding debtors of R180,079 (2008: R480,313)
within the normal terms.

Directors’ emoluments

 806,610  1,061,911

Chairman of the Board  114,536  141,107

Board members  541,809  797,194

Travelling reimbursements  150,265  123,610

Key management compensation

 7,100,100  3,265,206

Salaries  6,529,851  2,934,759

Defined contribution towards retirement fund  570,249  330,447

 7,906,710  4,327,117
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE - UNAUDITED

2009 2009 2008

BUDGET

R  R  R

Revenue and other income 142,723,835  122,686,379  118,018,205

Agricultural product standards levies 89,299,614  78,856,132  73,115,379

Perishable products export levies  29,215,435  25,177,260  24,419,559

Container inspections  2,686,094  2,155,536  2,428,573

Value added services  10,729,810  9,212,038  8,949,261

Other services  2,949,072  2,809,759  3,144,508

Management fees  -  -  1,766,109

Training and development  1,603,159  1,475,654  491,403

Interest on investments  6,239,142  3,000,000  3,703,413

Profit on disposal of fixed assets  1,509  -  -

Expenditure 125,365,508  122,686,378  104,221,295

Administration expenses 548,387  357,040  337,077

Corporate identity and communication  1,153,442  1,391,180  804,235

Auditors remuneration  396,590  230,000  238,500

Movement in provision for bad debt  94,730  48,000  94,685

Computer expenditure  4,246,023  4,836,626  3,895,290

Consultation fees  619,527  355,992  960,711

Depreciation on historic cost  836,503  811,424  700,357

Directors’ emoluments  806,610  -  1,061,911

Employee cost  89,884,988  88,358,406  76,103,143

Finance charges  16,598  3,600  8,491

Insurance  301,160  391,000  320,135

Legal fees  229,079  200,000  433,494

License and affiliation fees  917,374  612,770  444,088

Loss on disposal of fixed assets  -  -  3,846

Office rental and maintenance  2,698,994  2,886,364  2,540,126

Overseas travelling  648,392  585,395  179,648

Publications and membership fees  128,349  155,565  122,338

Replacement of field equipment and consumables  2,531,072  1,831,334  1,599,846

Stationery  581,535  516,378  407,205

Telephone, fax and postage  1,776,928  2,132,415  1,656,066

Training  2,157,262  3,272,333  1,003,774

Travelling and subsistence  14,488,197  13,389,514  11,034,505

Water, electricity, rates and taxes 303,768  321,042  271,824

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 17,358,327  1  13,796,910
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